
WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 

 MEETING AGENDA 

SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING 

 
 

Donald Edmunds, Chair, Philip Sanzica, Vice Chair 
Steve Gottlieb, Michael W. Hutson, Tom Krent, Gordon Schepke 

 Robert Schultz, Thomas Strat and John J. Tagle 

   

March 25, 2014 7:00 P.M. Council Board Room 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES – March 11, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 080-D) – Proposed Walsh College 

Renovations and Addition, East side of Livernois, South of Wattles (3838 Livernois), Section 22, 
Currently Zoned CF (Community Facilities) District 

 
CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST 

 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 011) – 

Proposed Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West side of Livernois, North of Town 
Center (3409 Livernois), Section 21, From O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
10. PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS – Draft Revisions 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 

12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
ADJOURN 

 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City 

Clerk by e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting.  An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:01 p.m. on March 11, 2014 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Steve Gottlieb 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Frank Boudon, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-012 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-013 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Schepke 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 11, 2014 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Poppleton Ridge, 

11 units/lots, South side of Big Beaver, E of Adams between Brooklawn and 
Wrenwood (3737 W Big Beaver), Section 30, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family 
Residential) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan application for Poppleton 
Ridge. He reported the applicant provided floor plans and elevations in compliance with 
the submittal requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. Mr. Carlisle addressed: 
 

• Existing landscaped berm along the southerly boundary. 
• Lot 4 as relates to minimum width requirement. 
• Maintenance of greenbelt and Big Beaver right of way. 
• Road width of Poppleton Court. 
• Storm water alternatives; i.e., location of detention basin to provide amenity for 

residential community. 
• Required vision clearance triangle for decorative wall and landscaped corner at Big 

Beaver and Brooklawn. 
 
Mr. Carlisle indicated support for the proposed Preliminary Site Plan and recommended 
approval of the application with the conditions as outlined in his report, dated February 24, 
2014, with the exception of the applicant providing building plans and elevations. 
 
Joe Cracchiolo was present and said he would abide by the conditions outlined in the 
Planning Consultant report. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Tree preservation. 
• Alternative storm water features; specifically grass/paver material. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. There was no one present; the floor 
was closed for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-014 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Condominium Approval, pursuant to Article 8 and 
Section 10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for Poppleton Ridge Site 
Condominium, 11 units/lots, South side of Big Beaver, East of Adams between 
Brooklawn and Wrenwood, Section 30, currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) 
District, be granted, subject to the following: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

3 
 

1. Increase road width of Poppleton Court to 28-feet. 
2. Reconfigure Lot 4 to meet the 76.5 foot minimum width requirement. 
3. Indicate percent lot coverage by building. 
4. Consider more naturalized storm water best management practices. 
5. Indicate maintenance of greenbelt and Big Beaver right of way. 
6. Ensure that the 25-foot vision clearance triangle is met. 
7. Construct the retention pond access drive with grass/paver material. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
There was discussion whether approval of the Preliminary Site Plan should be subject 
to the minimum square footage requirements for residential units. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the applicant is not able to provide the square footage information at 
this time because he is building custom homes. Mr. Savidant said he is confident the 
applicant will meet the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and it is not necessary to 
place that condition on its approval. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 

Number SU 412) – Proposed Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc., North side 
of Birchwood, East of Bellingham (1871 Birchwood), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB 
(Integrated Industrial and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan application for Advanced 
Landscape & Builders Supply. He said the soil conveyor, sorter and stockpile are not 
standard operations for a landscaper contractor’s yard. Mr. Carlisle said he not able to 
make a recommendation until the applicant provides additional information as outlined in 
his report, dated February 26, 2014. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Decibel level of noise. 
• Impact on surrounding neighbors. 
• Height of equipment. 
• Retail entity of operation. 
• Soil and mud transported on surface roads. 
• Proposed portions of pavement. 
• Storm water management. 
 
Present were the applicant/property owner, Russ Maloney, and Nathan Robinson of 
Horizon Engineering. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

4 
 

Mr. Robinson provided an explanation of the proposed use on site, stating it would be a 
low intensity, low trafficked operation. He addressed: 
 

• Average hours of operation and topsoil sorting. 
• Truck traffic to/from site. 
• Overnight parking; two trucks. 
• Height dimensions of topsoil sorter/conveyer. 
• Existing 6 foot wood fence. 
• Paving of site; proposed to pave northwest quadrant. 
• Vehicular driving, parking and maneuvering on paved surface. 
• Dust control; spray with water, chloride. 
• Soil erosion control; no immediate measures, possibly some type of barrier. 
• Storm water requirements dependent on amount of pavement. The applicant will 

comply with all engineering requirements. 
 
Mr. Robinson distributed manufacturing flyers on the landscaping and topsoil sorter 
equipment. 
 
Mr. Maloney said the topsoil sorter is equivalent to a larger tractor with a 4-cylinder motor 
and a muffler that could be used to control noise. Mr. Maloney said there would be no 
retail operation at this site; the facility would not be open to the public. He addressed the 
height of the topsoil sorter and his flexibility in hours of operation. 
 
Discussion continued on: 
• Screening for adjacent properties. 
• Sight angles of equipment from adjacent properties. 
• Manufacturer of topsoil sorting equipment; decibel level, motor, muffler. 
• Cost factor as relates to paving entire site. 
• Decibel level allowed in IB district; not to exceed 70 decibels at property line. 
• Storm water management; bioswales in lieu of retention to manage run-off. 
• Definition of ‘travel areas’. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Lisa Casali of Collision Protection Sciences, 1893 Birchwood Drive, was present. Ms. 
Casali said Collision Protection Services moved to this location in January 2013 because 
of its perfect fit with the office space and garage area. She displayed pictures taken on this 
date of the existing view from her office window. Ms. Casali shared concerns with the 
noise level of the proposed use, stating it is not a fit for their business or neighboring 
businesses. She asked that consideration be given for additional screening should the use 
get approval. Ms. Casali referenced Section 6.08 as relates to topsoil sorting operation 
and questioned who would monitor the site for code violations. Ms. Casali said she has 
had no contact with the applicant. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

5 
 

Board members asked the applicant to address: 
• Acceptable screening for surrounding neighbors. 
• Designate paving area on the site plan. 
• Noise levels. 
• Retention/run-off measurements. 
• Public comment; approach and reach common ground with neighboring businesses. 
 
Mr. Maloney briefly addressed the previous use of property. He offered to demonstrate to 
the Board members the operation of the topsoil sorter/conveyor equipment. 
 
Mr. Carlisle stated any conditions the Planning Commission might place on the Special 
Use Approval must relate to the special use and operation of the site; i.e., fence, 
screening, protection of surrounding properties, hours of operation. 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03-015 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Gottlieb 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for 
the proposed Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc., to the April 8, 2014 Regular 
meeting, or until such time as the petitioner comes back with a revised site plan.  
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
7. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 011) – Proposed Amber 

Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West side of Livernois, North of Town Center 
(3409 Livernois), Section 21, From O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a history on the previous traditional rezoning request denied by 
City Council on January 27, 2014 and a previously submitted site plan that related to the 
traditional rezoning request. He addressed changes in the proposed Conditional 
Rezoning application which is scheduled for a Public Hearing on March 25, 2014. Mr. 
Savidant summarized the proposed development is lower in profile. He displayed color 
renderings provided by the applicant. 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the differences between a traditional rezoning request and a 
conditional rezoning request. 
 
Present were the petitioner, Jerome Amber, and the project architect, Justin Wieber of 
SHW Group. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 11, 2014 
  
 
 

6 
 

Mr. Amber addressed the Master Plan, noting the project is market driven and he has 
tenants who want to move to Troy. 
 
Mr. Wieber addressed the changes in the proposed preliminary site plan. 
• Elimination of one floor. 
• Improved sight lines. 
• Reduced number of balconies. 
• Increased brick on rear elevation. 
• Reduced parking. 
• Increased greenbelt and landscape. 
• Additional glazing on front elevation. 
 
Mr. Wieber gave an explanation on the sight line drawings that were displayed. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. There was no one present; the floor 
was closed for public comment. 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Planning Commission comments related to: 
• Special Use Application before Board this evening. 
• Walsh College application; received variances from ZBA, scheduled for March 25, 

2014 meeting. 
• Proposed Bylaw amendments; item for March 25, 2014 agenda. 
• Transit Center project update. 

 
The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:38 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Donald Edmunds, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2014 PC Minutes\Draft\2014 03 11 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



  PC 2014.03.25 
  Agenda Item # 8 

 

 
 
DATE: March 20, 2014 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 080-D) – Proposed Walsh 

College Renovations and Addition, East side of Livernois, South of Wattles (3838 
Livernois), Section 22, Currently Zoned CF (Community Facilities) District 

 
 
The petitioner Walsh College submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan Approval 
application for the partial demolition, expansion and renovation of the existing facility. The 
proposed renovation and expansion is located along the west elevation. The total footprint 
expansion is approximately 1,200 square feet in area. The renovation and conversion of the one 
story area to a two story space will provide additional student area, administrative office area 
and a new forty person auditorium. 
 
The property is currently zoned CF (Community Facility) District. The Planning Commission is 
responsible for granting Preliminary Site Plan Approval for this item. The application requires 
that the petitioner obtain a setback variance and two height variances from the Zoning Board of 
Appeals. The Planning Commission considered this item at the February 11, 2014 Regular meeting 
but took no action. The Zoning Board of Appeals considered this item at their February 18, 2014 
meeting and approved the variance requests (draft minutes attached). 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project. CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire. City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and the recommendations included therein. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3. Minutes from February 11, 2014 Planning Commission meeting (excerpt) 
4. Minutes from February 18, 2014 Zoning Board of Appeals meeting (excerpt) 
5. Landscape Maintenance and Replacement Agreement 

 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 080 D  Walsh College Expansion and Renovation\SP-080D PC Memo 03 25 14.docx 



PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File # SP-080 D) – Proposed Walsh College 
Renovations and Addition, East side of Livernois, South of Wattles (3838 Livernois), Section 
22, Currently Zoned CF (Community Facilities) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Walsh College Renovations and Addition, located 
on the east side of Livernois, south of Wattles (3838 Livernois), Section 22, within the CF 
(Community Facilities) District, be  
 
(granted, for the following reasons:         ) or 
 
(denied, for the following reasons:  ) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:  ) 
 

Yes: 
No: 
 
MOTION CARRIED/FAILED 
 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 080 D  Walsh College Expansion and Renovation\Proposed PC Resolution 03 25 2014.doc 



WALSH COLLEGE EXPANSION

1: 6,202

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

51701,034 1,034Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/13/2014

Legend:

Street Name Text



WALSH COLLEGE EXPANSION

1: 6,202

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

51701,034 1,034Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/13/2014

Legend:

Street Name Text

Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
Date:  March 20, 2014 

 

Preliminary Site Plan Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Walsh College c/o Valerio Dewalt Train Associates, Inc. 
 500 N. Dearborn, 9th Floor 
 Chicago, IL 60654 
 
Project Name: Walsh College Expansion and Renovation 
 
Plan Date: March 11, 2014 
 
Location: East side of Livernois Road, between E. Wattles & E. Big Beaver 

Roads 
 
Zoning: CF, Community Facilities 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan Approval 
 
Required Information: Noted Below 
 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROJECT STATUS 

 
Walsh College is requesting approval of a preliminary site plan for the partial demolition, expansion, and 
renovation of the existing campus facility located at 3838 Livernois Road in the City of Troy.   The 
proposed renovation and expansion is located along the west elevation fronting on Livernois.  While, the 
total footprint expansion is approximately 1,200 square feet, the renovation and conversation of the 
one (1) story area to a fully functional two (2) story space will provide additional student area, 
administrative office area and a new forty (40) person auditorium.   
 
The current use of the property is institutional education, which is a permitted use under the CF, 
Community Facilities District.  The proposed use of the site will remain institutional education.  



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED SITE PLAN 
 
The project was reviewed by the Planning Commission on February.  At that meeting the Planning 
Commission commented favorably on the project; however was unable to take action until the applicant 
received variances from the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) for the following items: 
 

1. A 10-foot variance to the 25-foot maximum allowed building height. 
 

2. A 5.15-foot variance to the 80-foot minimum setback allowance from the adjacent residential 
property. 
 

3. A 4-foot variance to the 35-foot maximum allowed rooftop equipment screening structure 
height. 

 
The applicant received the variances on February 18th.   
 
In our January 29th memo we recommend that the Planning Commission consider the parking deviation, 
and the applicant resubmit the site plan addressing the following issues:   
 

1. Provide an elevation of the screen wall on the plans;  
2. Reduce the lighting levels to no more than 20 footcandles; and 
3. Address potential glare from interior lights to the adjacent residential property to the north.   

 
Please see our January 29th Memo for a complete site plan review.  
 
VARIANCES 

 
Conditions of the Zoning Board of Appeals upon the granting of the variances included:  
 

• Applicant and owner of 3684 Livernois to develop a mutually agreeable landscaping screening 
plan. 

• Landscape screening to address the common east-west property line separating the properties.  
• Landscape screening plan to be incorporated into an amended Site Plan for the Planning 

Commission.   
 
The applicant has submitted a landscape screening proposal to the property owner of 3684 Livernois.  
Walsh College has submitted the signed screening agreement.  
 
Items to be addressed: None 
 
HEIGHT & SETBACKS 

 
Sections 4.11.C-D and 6.22 of the Zoning Ordinance establish the dimensional requirements for both the 
CF District, and the specific use standards for Post-Secondary Schools.  The requirements and proposed 
dimensions are as follows: 
 

 Required1: Provided: Compliance2 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

1.  Section 6.22.B, states, that no post-secondary school building shall be closer than eighty (80) feet to any 
property line that is residentially zoned or used.   
2.  The Applicant has received a variance for this requirement. 
 
The applicant has received variances from the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA). 
 
Items to be addressed:  None.  
 
SCREEN WALL 

 
The site plan proposes the addition of a new generator to the existing generator location along the 
northern elevation of the building, for a total of two (2) generators servicing the site.  Per the site plan, 
the existing screening wall for the generator location will be extended westward and the existing gate 
relocated to accommodate the additional generator.   The extension of the screening wall will be at least 
as high as the equipment being screened and composed of the same type of brick to match existing 
construction materials.  The applicant has supplied an elevation of the proposed extension to the 
screening wall.   
 
Items to be addressed:  None. 
 
PHOTOMETRICS 

 
A lighting/photometric plan has been submitted as part of the site plan and is subject to the 
requirements set forth in Section 13.05, Lighting, in the Zoning Ordinance.  The revised photometric plan 
(Sheet ES1-00) proposes five (5) different types of lighting fixtures for the site, including recessed wall 
luminaires, in-grade flood lighting, bollard lighting, and two types of flood lighting to be mounted at 
grade level.  A lighting note, detailed on the General Site Plan (Sheet C1-01), state that, “Any new site 
lighting shall be shielded and directed fully downward away from adjacent properties in accordance with 
community standards.  Any new site lighting shall match existing site lighting in intensity, style & 
height.”   
 
The applicant has submitted a revised photometric plan that complies with the maximum 20.0 foot-
candle allowance in the Zoning Ordinance, per Section 13.05.D.1.  The applicant has also supplied a 
memorandum, titled “Preliminary Site Plan Review Revised – Lighting Control Narrative”, stating that the 
following measures will be taken to properly screen and reduce the amount of potential glare from 
exterior and interior lighting from the adjacent residential property to the north: 
 

Front (Livernois Road) 50 foot  minimum setback 55 feet Complies 

Side (north) 80 foot  minimum setback1 74.85 feet Complies2 

Side (south) 80 foot  minimum setback1 114.3 feet Complies 

Rear (east) 80 foot  minimum setback1 702.9 feet Complies 

Building Height Maximum 2  stories, 25 feet 35 feet  Complies2 

Maximum Building 
Coverage 

30% Less than 30% Complies 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

1. The new exterior lighting associated with the northern elevation will be controlled via contact 
from the existing exterior lighting control such that all the exterior lighting illuminates at the 
same time. 
 

2. The new exterior lighting fixtures associated with the northern elevation have optics that prevent 
the direct line of sight with the lamp to minimize glare. 
 

3. All lighting fixtures are designed to direct the light downwards toward the ground with the 
exception of the flood lights that will illuminate the free-standing canopy at the northeast entry.  
The flood lights will be aimed toward the top of the canopy and will be positioned to minimize 
glare. 
 

4. Interior lighting on the first and second floors that will be visible from the northern elevation is 
mainly limited to recessed lay-in fixtures with regressed lenses that will minimize glare. 
 

5. All interior lighting with a direct line of sight to any openings in the envelope will be reduce by at 
least 50% between the hours of 11PM and 5AM. 

  
Items to be addressed:  None.   
 
PARKING 

 
The applicant is adding 4,892 square feet of net additional office area and a forty (40) seat auditorium.  
Section 13.06.G of the Zoning Ordinance requires: 
 

 Required Provided 
Existing Walsh College Parking 985 spaces 985 spaces  

Post-Secondary Schools: 
1 space for each teacher, 
employee, or administrator, 
and 1 for each 10 students, in 
addition to the requirements 
for auditorium or stadium 

Based on 100 square feet per 
employee the 4,892 square feet of 
additional office area= 49 spaces 
 
 
 
 

0 spaces 

Auditorium: 
1 space for each three (3) 
seats 

40 seats/3 = 14 spaces 
 

Total 985 + 63 spaces 985 spaces 
 
The applicant does not propose any new/additional parking.  The proposed addition to the site increases 
the overall usable building area, which necessitates sixty-three (63) additional parking spaces to be 
provided.  Walsh College has projected staff growth for the next 50 years to add 35 staff members, less 
than the 49 spaces required.  The parking requirement narrative submitted on the site plan, states, “Due 
to Walsh College’s unique occupancy schedule, administrative staff occupies the building during the day 
and students occupy the building at night.  The existing 985 parking spaces are sufficient for the new 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
5  P a g e  

project.  The maximum number of employees at Walsh College with a projected 30% growth is 118 
people.  The new auditorium is supplementary to the existing student body and will not incur additional 
students.”   
 
As set forth in Section 13.06.F.2 the Planning Commission can grant a parking deviation.  The Section 
states; the city may grant deviations from off-street parking requirements. These deviations may require 
more or less parking based upon a finding that such deviations are more likely to provide a sufficient 
number of parking spaces to accommodate the specific characteristics of the use in question.  In the 
event that a deviation is granted by the City, the following shall apply: 
 

a) An applicant may request a parking deviation as part of a development application or as a 
separate and distinct action with no other concurrent request. 
 

b) The applicant shall provide a parking study with adequate detail and information to assist the 
City in determining the appropriateness of the request. 
 

c) A parking deviation may be included in an action on a concurrent request or made separately by 
resolution. 
 

d) The City may attach conditions to the approval of a deviation from the off-street parking 
requirements that bind such approval to the specific use in question. 
 

e) The City may require the applicant to set aside area for reserve parking (landbanking) that can 
be constructed as needed, although this is not a prerequisite for the approval or a deviation. 
Where an area is set aside for reserve parking, it shall be easily developed, not devoted to a use 
other than open space, and shall be designed to accommodate attendant facilities such as 
maneuvering lanes and drainage. 

 
Furthermore, Section 13.06.F.3, states, it is the intent of this Ordinance to minimize excessive areas of 
pavement which reduces aesthetic standards and contributes to high rates of storm water runoff.  
Exceeding the minimum parking space requirements by more than twenty percent (20%) shall only be 
allowed with approval by the City. 
   
Items to be addressed:  The Planning Commission should consider granting the parking deviation.   
  
RECOMMENDATION 
 
We find that the proposed preliminary site plan is consistent with the goals of the Zoning Ordinance and 
is a major improvement to the existing facility on the Walsh College Campus.  We recommend site plan 
approval. 
 
Sincerely,  

      
#225-02-1405 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING –  FINAL FEBRUARY 11, 2014 
   
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 080-D) – Proposed Walsh 

College Renovations and Addition, East side of Livernois, South of Wattles (3838 
Livernois), Section 22, Currently Zoned CF (Community Facilities) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the Preliminary Site Plan application for Walsh College. He 
addressed: 
• The required variances relating to the proposed building setback and building 

height. 
• A request for a parking deviation from the required number of parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Carlisle noted the Planning Commission cannot take action on the application 
until the applicant receives the necessary variances from the Zoning Board of 
Appeals. 
 
Mr. Carlisle reported the proposed site plan is consistent with the goals of the 
Zoning Ordinance. He said if the applicant is granted the necessary variances, he 
recommends that the Planning Commission give consideration to the parking 
deviation and asked the applicant to resubmit the Site Plan addressing the items 
indicated in his report dated January 29, 2014 for review and approval at the next 
Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Stephanie Bergeron, President and Chief Executive Officer of Walsh College, and 
Christine McGrath of Valerio Dewalt Train Associates, project architect, were 
present. 
 
Ms. McGrath gave a general description of the proposed design concepts. 
 
The proposed preliminary site plan was well received by all of the Board members. 

 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING   DRAFT FEBRUARY 18, 2014 
 
 
4. HEARING OF CASES 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, WALSH COLLEGE c/o VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN 
ASSOCIATES, 3838 LIVERNOIS – In order to construct modifications to 
the existing building:  1) a 10 foot variance to the 25 foot maximum 
allowed building height; 2) a 5.15 foot variance to the required 80 foot 
setback from adjacent residential property; and 3) a 4 foot variance to the 
maximum permitted 35 foot height limit for proposed rooftop mechanical 
equipment screening structures. Zoning Ordinance Sections 4.11 (C) CF 
Zoning District, 6.22 (B), 7.08 (A) (1). 
 
Moved by Krent 
Seconded by McCown 
 
RESOLVED, to grant the request, subject to: 

• Applicant and owner of 3684 Livernois to develop a mutually 
agreeable landscape screening plan; 

• Landscape screening plan to address the common east-west 
property line separating the properties; 

• Landscape screening plan to be incorporated into an amended Site 
Plan for the Planning Commission. 

 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 

 







G1-2

PARTITION TYPE

101

WINDOW TAG

DOOR TAG

ROOM NAME

STRUCTURAL GRID LINES

NORTH ARROW

ROOM NUMBER
ROOM NAME

SHEET WHERE BLDG SECTION IS DRAWN
BLDG SECTION IDENTIFICATION
DIRECTION VIEWED

ELEVATION IDENTIFICATION
DIRECTION VIEWED

MATERIAL TAG

NAME
EL. ELEVATION

WORK POINT, ELEVATION MARKER & LEVEL

XX
A4-XX

?GB1

1 REVISION TAG

0

0

A

XX BLDG SECTION IDENTIFICATION
DIRECTION VIEWED

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"1ADETAIL TITLE

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"1A
DETAIL TITLE_FIRST LINE
DETAIL TITLE_SECOND LINE

A1-2

A6-XX
1

1
1

1 SHEET WHERE INTERIOR ELEVATION IS DRAWN

SHEET NUMBER

1

SHEET TITLE

2

VDTA PROJECT NUMBER

PROJECT TEAM

3

4

5

6

7

8

MLKJHGFEDCBA

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

© 2013 VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN ASSOCIATES, INC

PROJECT NAME

PROJECT ADDRESS

ARCHITECT

VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN ASSOC.
500 N. DEARBORN, 9TH FLOOR
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60654
312.260.7300
www.buildordie.com

ARCHITECT STAMP

CONSULTANT

CONSULTANT PROJECT NUMBER

JOSEPH VALERIO
CHRISTINE McGRATH BREUER
JENNIFER COOPER
MICHAEL KIRSCHNER

12123.00

G0-00

Walsh College
Livernois Road and
Interiors

3838 Livernois Rd
Troy, MI
48083

COVER SHEET

SHEET INDEX - TABLE OF CONTENTS
ETAD ECNAUSSIEMAN TEEHSREBMUN TEEHS

GENERAL
TEEHS REVOC00-0G 02.03.2014

SGNIREDNER10-0G 01.10.2014

CIVIL
4102.30.20ETADPU YEVRUS CIHPARGOPOT / YRADNUOB  310200-1C

NALP ETIS LARENEG10-1C 02.03.2014
NALP NALP ETIS GNIREENIGNE20-1C 02.03.2014

LANDSCAPE
YROTNEVNI EERT GNITSIXE10-0L 02.03.2014

NALP ETIS EPACSDNAL10-1L 02.03.2014
SLIATED ETIS EPACSDNAL20-1L 02.03.2014

ARCHITECTURAL
NALP ETIS LLAREVO00-0A 02.03.2014

NALP ETIS LARUTCETIHCRA10-0A 02.03.2014

NALP ROOLF TSRIF10-1A 02.03.2014
NALP ROOLF DNOCES20-1A 02.03.2014

SNOITAVELE10-2A 02.03.2014

ELECTRICAL
SNOITALUCLAC CIRTEMOTOHP ETIS00-1SE 01.10.2014

WALSH COLLEGE LIVERNOIS ROAD AND INTERIORS

DRAWINGS  SCHEDULE

3838 Livernois Rd, Troy, MI 48083

PROJECT RENDERING

LOCATION MAP GENERAL NOTES

1. ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO APPLICABLE CODES AND COMPLY WITH ALL LAWS, ORDINANCES, RULES, REGULATIONS, AND LAWFUL ORDERS OF AN Y PUBLIC AUTHORITY BEARING ON THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE AND PAY FOR REQUIRED PERMITS, FEES, LICENSES, AND INSPECTIONS NECESSARY FOR THE PROPER EXECUTION  AND COMPLETION OF THE WORK.

3. ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS AND DIMENSIONS SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED BY THE CONTRACTOR, WHO SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT  OF ANY DISCREPANCIES, COMMISSIONS, OR CONFLICTS BEFORE PROCEEEDING WITH THE WORK.  NO EXTRA COSTS WILL BE AUTHORIZED FOR WORK
WHICH IS REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE PROJECT SCOPE AND INTENT DUE TO CONDITIONS WHICH ARE READILY OBSERVABLE AT THE PROJECT SITE.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DAILY CLEANING AND REMOVAL OF ALL DEBRIS, DUST, AND EQUIPMENT RELATED TO THE DEMOLIT ION AND THROUGH CLEAN-UP UPON COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT THE PROJECT SITE AND BE KNOWLEGEABLE OF CONDITIONS THEREON.  CONTRACTOR SHALL INVESTIGATE, VERIFY , AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL CONDITIONS OF THE PROJECT AND SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER OF ANY CONDITIONS REQUIRING MODIFICATION BEFO RE
PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK.

6. THE DRAWINGS ISSUED HEREWITH ARE SCOPE DOCUMENTS, AND AS SUCH SHOW THE GENERAL EXTENT OF THE PROJECT AND DO NOT NECESSARILY INDICATE OR DESCRIBE ALL WORK REQUIRED FOR FULL PERFORMANCE AND COMPLETION OF THE WORK, NOR DO THEY SHOW ALL OF THE
CONDITIONS WHICH MAY BE ENCOUNTERED TO PROPERLY EXECUTE THE WORK.

7. DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS - DIMENSIONS GOVERN.  LARGE SCALE DETAILS GOVERN OVER SMALL.

8. WHERE DISCREPANCIES OCCUR BETWEEN THE VARIOUS DISCIPLINES/TRADES, CONSULT THE ARCHITECT BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK.

9. FINISH FLOOR ELEVATIONS ARE TO TOP OF CONCRETE, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

10.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNISH AND INSTALL ALL STIFFENERS, BRACINGS, BACKING PLATES, AND SUPPORTING BRACKETS REQUIRED FOR TH E PROPER INSTALLATION OF ALL CASEWORK, TOILET ROOM ACCESSORIES, TOILET PARTITIONS, INCLUDING WALL-MOUNTED AND/OR SUSPENDED
MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL AND MISCELLANEOUS EQUIPMENT WHETHER SHOWN IN THE DRAWINGS OR NOT.  THIS SHALL ALSO APPLY TO OWNER FURNIS HED/CONTRACTOR INSTALLED EQUIPMENT.

11. FURNISHED/CONTRACTOR INSTALLED EQUIPM ENT. STUD AND GYPSUM  BOARD PARTITIONS.

12. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE PLACEMENT OF ALL CEILING ELEMENTS WITH MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, AND INSTALLER.  WHERE DISCRE PANCIES EXIST BETWEEN DRAWINGS AND INSTALLATION, CONSULT THE ARCHITECT BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH WORK.

13. PROVIDE APPROPRIATE SEX DESIGNATION SIGNAGE FOR ALL TOILET ROOMS AND SUBMIT FOR OWNER APPROVAL PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

14. ALL EXPOSED FASTENERS IN PUBLIC AREAS TO BE TAMPER-PROOF WHEREVER POSSIBLE.

15. PAINT ALL EXPOSED, BARE, AND COVERED PIPES, DUCTS, HANGERS, STEEL, ELECTRICAL BOXES AND CONDUIT TO MATCH ADJACENT SURFACES OR AS SPECIFIED BY DRAWINGS OR FINISH SCHEDULE.

16. ALL EXTERIOR GUARDRAILS, HANDRAILS, AND OTHER EXTERIOR EXPOSED METAL SHALL BE GALVANIZED AND PAINTED, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWIS E.

17. ALL EXTERIOR JOINTS AROUND WINDOW AND DOOR FRAMES, BETWEEN WALLS AND FOUNDATION, BETWEEN WALLS AND ROOF, BETWEEN WALL PANEL S, AND AT PENETRATIONS OF UTILITIES, ETC. THROUGH THE EXTERIOR ENVELOPE SHALL BE SEALED, CAULKED, OR WEATHER-STRIPPED TO PREVEN T
AIR AND WATER INFILTRATION.

18. ALL HANDICAPPED DOOR HARDWARE SHALL BE PROVIDED IN COMPLIANCE WITH MICHIGAN'S BARRIER FREE CODE.

19. ALL DOORS REQUIRED FOR HANDICAPPED ACCESS SHALL HAVE MANEUVERING CLEARANCES PROVIDED PER MICHIGAN'S BARRIER FREE CODE.

20. SAFETY GLAZING SHALL BE PROVIDED AT ALL LOCATIONS AS OUTLINED IN 2009 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE AND ANSI Z97.1 GLAZING MA TERIALS USED IN BUILDINGS AND SAFETY PERFORMANCE SPECIFICATIONS AND METHODS OF TEST.

21. DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS SHOULD BE USED AS JOINT DOCUMENTS. IN CASE OF CONFLICT, NOTIFY ARCHITECT FOR CLARIFICATION.

PROJECT TEAM

OWNER

ARCHITECT
VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN ASSOCIATES, INC.
500 N. DEARBORN ST.
SUITE 900
CHICAGO, IL 60654
T: 312.260.7300

STRUCTURAL

MEP/FP ENGINEERS

CIVIL ENGINEERS

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

BUILDING INFORMATION
OCCUPANCY GROUP: BUSINESS
ACCESORY GROUPS: ASSEMBLY

PROJECT FOOTPRINT:
GROSS PROJECT SQUARE FOOTAGE (FAR):
TOAL AREA TO BE DEMOLISHED:
TOTAL AREA OF NEW CONSTRUCTION:
TOTAL AREA OF INTERIOR RENOVATION:
TOTAL AREA OF INTERIOR "REFRESH":
TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION:
NO. OF STORIES:
SPRINKLER SYSTEM:
FIRE ALARM:
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

 

15,225 SF
54,625 SF
12,646 SF
29,264 SF
 9, 558 SF
15,803 SF
IA
2
AUTOMATED
NATIONAL TIME & SIGNAL SERIES 902
DEMOLITION AND ADDITION TO THE EXISTING
WALSH COLLEGE CAMPUS WITH HEAVY INTERIOR
RENOVATION AND REFRESH AND NEW SITE
IMPROVEMENTS ON LIVERNOIS ROAD AND
VARIOUS ENTRANCES TO THE COLLEGE.

WALSH COLLEGE
3838 LIVERNOIS ROAD
TROY, MI 48043
T: 248.823.1230

ROBERT DARVAS ASSOCIATES
440 SOUTH MAIN STREET
ANN ARBOR, MI 48104
T: 734.761.8713

STRATEGIC ENERGY SOLUTIONS
4000 ELEVEN MILE ROAD
BERKLEY, MI 48072
T: 248.399.1900

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS
46777 WOODWARD AVENUE
PONTIAC, MI 48342
T: 248.332.7931

BECKETT & RAEDER
535 WEST WILLIAM STREET SUITE 101
ANN ARBOR, MI 48103
T: 734.663.2622

SYMBOLS LEGEND

Issue
No. Issued for Date

1 25% SCHEMATIC
DESIGN

11.25.2013

2 PRELIMINARY SITE
PLAN REVIEW

01.10.2014

3 PRELIM. SITE PLAN
REVIEW REVISED

02.03.2014



SHEET NUMBER

1

SHEET TITLE

2

VDTA PROJECT NUMBER

PROJECT TEAM

3

4

5

6

7

8

MLKJHGFEDCBA

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

© 2013 VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN ASSOCIATES, INC

PROJECT NAME

PROJECT ADDRESS

ARCHITECT

VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN ASSOC.
500 N. DEARBORN, 9TH FLOOR
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60654
312.260.7300
www.buildordie.com

ARCHITECT STAMP

CONSULTANT

CONSULTANT PROJECT NUMBER

JOSEPH VALERIO
CHRISTINE McGRATH BREUER
JENNIFER COOPER
MICHAEL KIRSCHNER

12123.00

G0‐01

Walsh College
Livernois Road and
Interiors

3838 Livernois Rd
Troy, MI
48083

RENDERINGS

LIVERNOIS ROAD FACADE

SOUTHWEST AERIAL VIEW

5G
G0-01

1A
G0-01

N.T.S.

N.T.S.

TYPICAL ENTRANCE CANOPY1G
G0-01 N.T.S.

Issue
No. Issued for Date

1 25% SCHEMATIC
DESIGN

11.25.2013

2 PRELIMINARY SITE
PLAN REVIEW

01.10.2014









Planning, Engineering and
Landscape Architecture

Beckett&Raeder
i

Environmental Services

PROJECT NAME

PROJECT ADDRESS

L0-01

Walsh College
Livernois Road and
Interiors

3838 Livernois Rd
Troy, MI
48083

Issue

No. Issued for Date

1 25% SCHEMATIC

DESIGN

11.22.2013

2 PRELIMINARY SITE

PLAN REVIEW

01.10.2014

3 PRELIMINARY SITE

PLAN REVIEW

REVISED

02.03.2014

0 10 20 40 60

Know what's

R

EXISTING TREE PRESERVATION/ INVENTORY PLAN

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

EXISTING TREES TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING TREE PRESERVATION/ INVENTORY LEGEND

1

2

5678
9

25

26

EXISTING TREE INVENTORY

SCOTCH PINE 8" POOR

TREES
NO. EXISTING TREE NAME CONDITION

1

SCOTCH PINE 8" POOR2

SCOTCH PINE 8" POOR3

SCOTCH PINE 8" POOR4

CRABAPPLE 5" FAIR5

CRABAPPLE 5" FAIR6

CRABAPPLE 5" FAIR7

CRABAPPLE 5" FAIR8

CRABAPPLE 5" FAIR9

CRABAPPLE 5" FAIR10

NO. EXISTING TREE NAME

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

NO. EXISTING TREE NAME

21

22

23

24

25

26

CRABAPPLE 5" FAIR

CRABAPPLE 5" FAIR

NORWAY MAPLE 8" FAIR

NORWAY MAPLE 8" FAIR

GREEN SPRUCE 6" FAIR

NORWAY MAPLE 8" FAIR

BLUE SPRUCE 6" POOR

CRABAPPLES 6" FAIR

CRABAPPLES 6" FAIR

CRABAPPLES 6" FAIR

COMMENTS COMMENTS

CRABAPPLE 6" FAIR

BLUE SPRUCE 6" POOR

NORWAY MAPLE 10" FAIR

NORWAY MAPLE 10" FAIR

ARBORVITEA 4" POOR

ARBORVITEA 4" POOR

LI
V

ER
N

O
IS

 R
O

A
D EXISTING BUILDING

3

4

10

11

12

13

14

15

17 18
19

20

21

22

2423

EXISTING SHRUBS TO REMAIN

EXISTING SHRUBS TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING
SIGN



Planning, Engineering and
Landscape Architecture

Beckett&Raeder
i

Environmental Services

PROJECT NAME

PROJECT ADDRESS

L1-01

Walsh College
Livernois Road and
Interiors

3838 Livernois Rd
Troy, MI
48083

Issue

No. Issued for Date

1 25% SCHEMATIC

DESIGN

11.22.2013

2 PRELIMINARY SITE

PLAN REVIEW

01.10.2014

3 PRELIMINARY SITE

PLAN REVIEW

REVISED

02.03.2014

0 10 20 40 60

Know what's

R

GREENROOF 

TO (9)

LANDSCAPE SITE PLAN NOTES

1. TOPSOIL (4") AND SEED ALL DISTURBED TURF AREAS.

2. ALL IMPORTED TOPSOIL SHALL BE SCREENED AND BE APPROVED BY LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT/ENGINEER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.  PROVIDE CERTIFICATION FOR ALL
IMPORTED TOPSOIL.

3. ALL PROPOSED LANDSCAPED AREAS WILL BE PROVIDED WITH IRRIGATION.

PA (104)

BP (4)

GM (66) 
PA (63)

AT (1,720)

EP (497)

IG (51)

GM (111) 
CA (117) 

CSR (4)

FS (1)

CSY (11)

PA (194)

LS (2,288)

PROPOSED SIGN
PAH (658)

BP (4)

HQ (11)

FG (23)
RG (139)

AT (564)

CSR (16)

PA (76)

GT (1)TO (4)

PA (33)

TO (1)

HQ (2)

SB (9)

LS (148) PAH (30)

EXISTING TREES

PROPOSED DECIDUOUS TREES

PROPOSED EVERGREEN TREES

PROPOSED LAWN

PROPOSED PERENNIALS,

PROPOSED MULCH

PROPOSED 1'

GRASSES AND

PROPOSED RAISED

PROPOSED SHRUBS

GREEN ROOF- INTENSIVE ROOF MIX
PLANTED 10" O.C.

SITE PLAN CALCULATIONS

STREET FRONTAGE
(GREENBELTS SECTION 13.02.D):
10' WIDTH MIN. FOR LANDSCAPE MEDIAN

1 DECIDUOUS TREE/30 LF OF MEDIAN
2 1/2" CAL. FOR DECIDUOUS, 5-6' HT. MIN FOR EVERGREENS

PROPOSED: 10 TREES (USED IN THE SITE LANDSCAPING AS CANOPY TREES)

SITE LANDSCAPING (SECTION 13.02.E):   
MIN.  20% OF PROPOSED SITE SHALL BE LANDSCAPED

TOTAL PROPOSED SITE SF: 28,000 SF
TOTAL PROPOSED LANDSCAPE AREA SF: 21,884 SF

TOTAL PERCENTAGE OF LANDSCAPE AREA: APPROX. 78%

LANDSCAPE SITE PLAN LEGEND

LI
V

ER
N

O
IS

 R
O

A
D

PROPOSED BUILDING
RENOVATION

CA (6)

HQ (4)

TO (7)

HQ (5)

SB (7)

CSR (3)
CA (58)CSY (7)

CSR (11)

LS (3,908)

CA (126) 

LS (3,180)

CSY (12)

CSR (15)

307 CA CALAMAGROSTIS X ACUTIFOLIA 'KARL FOERSTER'  KARL FOERSTER FEATHER REED GRASS 2 GAL. CONT. 24" O.C., FULL HEAVY PLANTS

49 CSR CORNUS SERICEA RED TWIG DOGWOOD 5 GAL. CONT. 4-5' HT., FULL HEAVY BRANCHING, 6' O.C.

30 CSY CORNUS SERICEA YELLOW TWIG DOGWOOD 5 GAL. CONT. 4-5' HT., FULL HEAVY BRANCHING, 6' O.C.

23 FG FOTHERGILLA GARDENII DWARF FOTHERGILLA 3 GAL. CONT. 24" HT., FULL HEAVY BRANCHING, 3' O.C.

22 HQ HYDRANGEA QUERCIFOLIA OAKLEAF HYDRANGEA 3 GAL. CONT. 30" HGT., FULL HEAVY BRANCHING, 4' O.C.

51 IG ILEX GLABRA VAR. 'COMPACTA' 'COMPACT' HOLLY 3 GAL. CONT. 36" HGT., FULL HEAVY BRANCHING, 4' O.C.

QTY. KEY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE ROOT COMMENTS

SHRUBS AND GRASSES

QTY. KEY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE ROOT COMMENTS

8

FS FAGUS SYLVATICA 'TRI COLOR' TRI COLOR BEECH1

GT GLEDITSIA TRIACANTHOS INERMIS 'SKYLINE' SKYLINE HONEYLOCUST1

1

21

2 1/2" B & B SINGLE STRAIGHT TRUNK, FULL UNIFORM HEAD

2 1/2" B & B SINGLE STRAIGHT TRUNK, FULL UNIFORM HEAD

5-6'HT. CONT. SINGLE STRAIGHT TRUNK, FULL UNIFORM HEADTO THUJA OCCIDNETALLIS WHITE CEDAR

BP BETULA POPULIFOLIA GRAY BIRCH 2 1/2" B & B SINGLE STRAIGHT TRUNK, FULL UNIFORM HEAD

PS PINUS STROBUS EASTERN WHITE PINE 5-6'HT. CONT. SINGLE STRAIGHT TRUNK, FULL UNIFORM HEAD

TREES

470 PA PENNISETUM ALOPECUROIDES FOUNTAIN GRASS 2 GAL. CONT. 24" O.C., FULL HEAVY PLANTS

688 PAH PENNISETUM ALOPECUROIDES 'HAMLIN' 'HAMLIN' DWARF FOUNTAIN GRASS 2 GAL. CONT. 18" O.C., FULL HEAVY PLANTS

16 SB SPIRAEA X BUMALDA ' ANTHONY WATERER' 'ANTHONY WATERER'  SPIRAEA 3 GAL. CONT. 30" HGT., FULL HEAVY BRANCHING, 4' O.C.

CONCRETE BAND

PLANTER BED

AND GROUND COVER

QTY. KEY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE ROOT COMMENTS

3,034

EP ECHINACEA VAR. CONEFLOWER497

GM GERANIUM MACULATUM WILD GERANIUM 177

139

13,856

2 GAL. CONT. 18" O.C., FULL HEAVY PLANTS

2 GAL. CONT. 18" O.C., FULL HEAVY PLANTS

48/FLAT FLAT 4 PER SQ. FT.LS LIRIOPE SPICATA CREEPING LILY TURF

AT ASCLEIAS TUBEROSA BUTTERFLY MILKWEED 1 GAL. CONT. 10" O.C., FULL HEAVY PLANTS

RG RUDBECKIA 'GOLDSTRUM'  'GOLDSTRUM'  BLACK EYED SUSAN 2 GAL. CONT. 18" O.C., FULL HEAVY PLANTS

PERENNIALS AND GROUNDCOVERS

LANDSCAPE PLANT SCHEDULE

SEE SHEET L1-02 FOR GREEN ROOF PLANT SCHEDULE

PS (1)

PROPOSED GREEN
ROOF PLANTINGS

LS (4,332)

EXSTING MULCH

EXISTING SHRUBS

AS (233)
SR (233)

AO (94)
SD (94)

AS (222)
SR (222)

AO (94)
SD (94)

SS (162)
DE (162)

DN (162)

SR (162)

PROPOSED STEEL EDGING

AT (257)

STEEL EDGING

L1-02

7



Planning, Engineering and
Landscape Architecture

Beckett&Raeder
i

Environmental Services

SEE PLANT MATERIAL NOTES FOR SPACING

Groundcover, Perennial and Annual Planting
NO SCALE

5

PLANTING MIXTURE

SET TOP OF ROOTBALL FLUSH WITH TOP OF PLANTING
MIXTURE FINISH GRADE. SEPARATE FOLIAGE AND MULCH.

NOTE: 

D = DIMENSION OF PLANT SPACING (SHRUB, GROUNDCOVER OR PERENNIAL)

2/3 D

D

AS INDICATED ON PLANS AND PLANT LIST

D

D

EDGE OF BED

Plant Spacing
NO SCALE

6

1.  INTENSIVE ROOF MIX TO BE PLANTED AT 10" O.C. (TRIANGULAR SPACING).  SPECIES SHALL BE MIXED
RANDOMLY SUCH THAT MASSES OF SINGLE SPECIES DO NOT OCCUR.  LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT SHALL
APPROVE LAYOUT PRIOR TO PLANTING.

2. LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT SHALL APPROVE ALL PLANT MATERIAL PRIOR TO PLANTING.
3. GREEN ROOF PLANT QUANTITIES SHALL BE FINALIZED AT THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT PHASE OF THE

PROJECT.

INTENSIVE ROOF MIX

#1 (8/flat)455 White Ornamental Chive(AS) Allium schoenoprasum 'Album'
#1 (8/flat)188 Fall Blooming Allium(AO) Allium thunbergii 'Ozawa'

3-1/4" (18/flat)162 John Proffitt Ice Plant(DE) Delosperma 'John Proffitt'

3-1/4" (18/flat)162 Hardy Ice Plant(DN) Delosperma nubigena

3-1/4" (18/flat)617 Angelina Sedum(SR) Sedum rupestre 'Angelina'

3-1/4" (18/flat)162 Six Angled Sedum(SS) Sedum sexangulare

3-1/4" (18/flat)188 Dragon's Blood Sedum(SD) Sedum spurium 'Dragon's Blood'

NOTE: 

Shrub Planting

COVER ENTIRE PLANTING BED WITH MULCH

BE CONTINUOUS FOR SHRUB 
PLANTING MIXTURE SHALL

THAN ADJACENT GRADE

PLANTING MIXTURE

BEDS, POCKET PLANTING SHALL

4" SHREDDED BARK MULCH

NOT BE PERMITTED

TAPER MULCH TO CENTER OF PLANT

1/3 OF BALL; REMOVE ALL
REMOVE BURLAP FROM TOP

PLASTIC WRAP, FABRIC, 

SCARIFY SETTING BED

ROT PROOF WRAP, AND

AND BED WALLS

SET PLANTING BED 2" HIGHER

SPACING VARIES
SEE PLANT LIST

MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES BY SEASON AVERAGE FREQUENCY

SPRING
-  APPLY BARK MULCH TO SHRUB AREAS AS NEEDED
-  OBSERVE TREES AND SHRUBS, TREAT AS NEEDED MONTHLY
-  INSPECT, WEED PLANTING AREAS AND REMOVE DEBRIS TWICE/MONTH
-  CULTIVATE AND WEED PLANTED AREAS MONTHLY
-  ACTIVATE IRRIGATION SYSTEM ONCE
-  HARD SURFACE SWEEPING MONTHLY
-  CLEAN AND SWEEP PARKING LOT MONTHLY

SUMMER
-  INSPECT, WEED PLANTING AREAS AND REMOVE DEBRIS TWICE/MONTH
-  INSPECT, REPAIR IRRIGATION HEADS AS NECESSARY MONTHLY
-  HARD SURFACE SWEEPING MONTHLY
-  OBSERVE SHRUBS AND TREES, TREAT AS NEEDED MONTHLY

FALL
-  INSPECT, WEED PLANTING AREAS AND REMOVE DEBRIS TWICE/MONTH
-  INSPECT, REPAIR IRRIGATION HEADS AS NECESSARY MONTHLY
-  HARD SURFACE SWEEPING MONTHLY
-  REMOVE DEAD LEAVES FROM PLANTING AREAS MONTHLY
-  DEACTIVATE IRRIGATION SYSTEM ONCE
-  APPLY BARK MULCH TO SHRUBS AND TREE RINGS ONCE
-  CHECK, PREPARE TREES FOR WINTER PROTECTION, IF NECESSARY ONCE

WINTER
-  HARD SURFACE SWEEPING AND SNOW REMOVAL (2" OR MORE) AS REQUIRED

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE PROGRAM
NOTE:  All diseased, damaged, or dead material shall be replaced.

PLANTING SOIL MIX 

W
IT

H
 B

A
LL

V
A

RI
ES

1

NO SCALE

Deciduous Tree Planting

8"

3'
-0

"

12" 12"

ON 8" COMPACTED BASE (EX. SOIL),
SET BALL ON UNDISTURBED SOIL OR 

SCARIFY WALL OF PLANTING PIT

( SEE SPECIFICATIONS )

COMPACT IN 4" LIFTS.

EXISTING SUB GRADE

FINISH GRADE
SEE PLANS

3"

5'
-0

" WOOD STAKES - 2"x 2" HARDWOOD,

SET AND MAINTAIN TOP OF ROOT BALL 

ROOT BALL, REMOVE CAGE, BURLAP

EQUALLY SPACED, 2 PER TREE.

2" ABOVE FINISH GRADE

3" SHREDDED BARK MULCH (SEE SPEC.'S)

& ROPE FROM TOP OF BALL

SHOVEL CUT EDGE

3" GALV. TURNBUCKLE

(TURNBUCKLE TO EACH END OF BOLT)
(2) 12 GA. GALV. GUY WIRES 

DO NOT CUT CENTRAL LEADER

1/2" BLACK  2 PLY REINFORCED

12 GA. GALV. GUY WIRE

RUBBER HOSE

3

NO SCALE

Evergreen Tree Planting

4" SHREDDED BARK MULCH

REMOVE BURLAP, TWINE AND
CHOKER ROPE FROM TOP 1/3
OF BALL. TOP OF WIRE CAGE
TO BE CUT AND REMOVED

PLANTING MIXTURE

3" TOPSOIL SAUCER/
SHOVEL CUT EDGE

FINISH GRADE-SLOPE 
AWAY FROM TREE

2X2X30" HARDWOOD STAKES
SET 24" BELOW FINISH GRADE

UNDISTURBED SOIL OR 4"
COMPACTED SUBGRADE

SCARIFY BOTTOM OF PIT TO
4" DEPTH AND RECOMPACT.
SCARIFY WALLS OF PIT.

12"

60°

SPACED AT 120 ) 11 GA. GALV. 
WIRE AND GALV. TURNBUCKLES

GRADE BASED ON FIELD 

1/2" DIA. BLACK RUBBER HOSE
WITH GUY CABLE (3 PER TREE

2"-4" HIGHER THAN FINISH
TREE SHALL BE PLANTED

CONFIRMATION OF PERCOLATION

NEVER CUT CENTRAL LEADER.
DEAD OR BROKEN BRANCHES.
PRUNE ONLY TO REMOVE

2/3 HEIGHT OF TREE

D
O

W
N

H
IL

L 
SL

O
PE 11 GA GALVANIZED GUYING WIRE

RUBBER HOSE
1/2" DIA. BLACK 

GALV. TURNBUCKLE (3 PER TREE)

120°

2

NO SCALE

Tree Guying

GREEN ROOF LANDSCAPE PLANT SCHEDULE

PROJECT NAME

PROJECT ADDRESS

L1-02

Walsh College
Livernois Road and
Interiors

3838 Livernois Rd
Troy, MI
48083

Issue

No. Issued for Date

1 25% SCHEMATIC

DESIGN

11.22.2013

2 PRELIMINARY SITE

PLAN REVIEW

01.10.2014

3 PRELIMINARY SITE

PLAN REVIEW

REVISED

02.03.2014

Steel Edging

PLANTING MIXTURE

STAKE

STEEL EDGING WITH 18" STAKES
(1/2" ABOVE GRADE)

LAWN AREA 

SHREDDED BARK MULCH 



T

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

TT

G

--

-

PROPERTY LINE, TYP.

DEVELOPMENT
AREA

EXISTING PARKING TO REMAIN
985 SPACES

EXISTING BUILDING TO REMAIN

NEW 2 STORY
BUILDING

LIV
ER

NO
IS

 R
OA

D

PARKING REQUIREMENT NARRATIVE:

IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 13.06.D2 OF THE ZONING
ORDINANCE WALSH COLLEGE HAS BASED ITS PARKING REQUIREMENTS  ON
MAXIMUM NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES LIKELY. THE NEW PROJECT IS PROVIDING
4,892 SF OF ADDITIONAL OFFICE AREA TO THE EXISTING BUILDING AND ONE (1)
FORTY (40) PERSON AUDITORIUM WHICH WOULD RESULT IN 63 REQUIRED
ADDITIONAL PARKING SPACES. HOWEVER DUE TO WALSH COLLEGE'S UNIQUE
OCCUPANCY SCHEDULE: ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF OCCUPY THE BUILDING
DURING THE DAY AND STUDENTS OCCUPY THE BUILDING AT NIGHT, THE
EXISTING 985 PARKING SPACES ARE SUFFICIENT FOR THE NEW PROJECT.  THE
MAXIMUM NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AT WALSH COLLEGE WITH A PROJECTED
30% GROWTH IS 118 PEOPLE.  THE NEW AUDITORIUM IS SUPPLEMENTARY TO
THE EXISTING STUDENT BODY AND WILL NOT INCUR ADDITIONAL STUDENTS.

STORMWATER DETENTION NARRATIVE:

SEE GRADING PLAN FOR STORMWATER INFORMATION

SITE INFORMATION
GROSS SITE AREA 1,644,952 SF
NET SITE AREA (AFTER ROW)
GROSS BUILDING AREA
NET USABLE BUILDING AREA
PARKING REQUIRED
PARKING PROVIDED

OPEN SPACE REQUIRED
OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

1,596,526.16 SF
53,886 SF
35,596 SF
985 EXISTING SPACES + 63 NEW SPACES
985 SPACES (NO NEW PARKING, SEE
PARKING REQUIREMENT NARRATIVE)
16,212 ACRES
20,993 ACRES

SHEET NUMBER

1

SHEET TITLE

2

VDTA PROJECT NUMBER

PROJECT TEAM

3

4

5

6

7

8

MLKJHGFEDCBA

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

© 2013 VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN ASSOCIATES, INC

PROJECT NAME

PROJECT ADDRESS

ARCHITECT

VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN ASSOC.
500 N. DEARBORN, 9TH FLOOR
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60654
312.260.7300
www.buildordie.com

ARCHITECT STAMP

CONSULTANT

CONSULTANT PROJECT NUMBER

JOSEPH VALERIO
CHRISTINE McGRATH BREUER
JENNIFER COOPER
MICHAEL KIRSCHNER

12123.00

A0-00

Walsh College
Livernois Road and
Interiors

3838 Livernois Rd
Troy, MI
48083

OVERALL SITE PLAN

Issue

No. Issued for Date

1 PRELIMINARY SITE
PLAN REVIEW

01.10.2014

2 ZONING BOARD OF
APPEALS

01.22.2014

3 PRELIM. SITE PLAN
REVIEW REVISED

02.03.2014

 1" = 100'-0"A0-00
1 OVERALL SITE PLAN



F1 F1

F1

F1F4F4

F4 F4

F1

F1

F1F4F4

F4

F4F4 F4

F4

F2

F2

F3

F3

F3

F3

F3

F3

F5

F3 F5

F3

F5

F3

F5

F2

F1F4 F4

75
'-5

"

15
3'-

9"
81

'-6
"

25
'-2

"
11

3'-
4"

74
'-1

0"

59
'-1

0"

21
'-4

"

8'-0"

10'-0"

136'-5"

"3-'51"7-'021

3'-
5"

20
'-9

"

13'-3"

63'-0"

200' +/- NEAREST RESIDENCE

77'-7"25'-5"

37
'-1

1"
11

'-0
"

42
'-6

"
23

'-7
"

38
'-1

0"

90'-3"

X

EXIT TO REMAIN

S 89^25'55"E 285.00'

N
00

^ 2
0' 2

5"
E

4 4
9. 3

6'
50' SIDE/REAR YARD PARKING
SETBACK

PROPERTY LINE

ALL EXISTING PARKING TO REMAIN, NO NEW PARKING

R.O.W. EASEMENT

EXISTING SIDEWALK TO
BE 8'-0" WIDE

PROPOSED GROUND
SIGN

PROPOSED BUILDING
FOOTPRINT AT GROUND
FLOOR, TYP.

EXISTING BUILDING
FOOTPRINT AT GROUND
FLOOR TO BE
DEMOLISHED, TYP.

NEW FIRE SUPPRESION AND LIGHT
INTERIOR REFRESH AREA
6,930 SF

NEW 2 STORY
ADDITION
27,029 SF

NEW INTERIOR
RENOVATION AREA
7,380 SF

NEW INTERIOR
REFRESH AREA
15,332 SF

ENTRANCE TO REMAIN

EXISTING FENCE
TO REMAIN

AREA OF LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS

NEW PLAZA

ALL EXISTING PARKING TO REMAIN, NO NEW PARKING

80' SIDE/REAR YARD SETBACK

NEW
GENERATOR

EXTEND EXISTING
SCREEN WALL

RELOCATE
EXISTING
GATE

EXISTING
GENERATOR

EXISTING HYDRANT
TO REMAIN, SEE
CIVIL DRAWINGS

NEW LIGHT FIXTURE,
TYP.  SEE ELECT.
DRAWING

NEW TREE, TYP. SEE
LANDSCAPE DRAWING

NEW CANOPY

EXISTING HYDRANT
TO REMAIN, SEE CIVIL
DRAWINGS

LIV
ER

NO
IS

 R
OA

D

SIT WALL
PLANTER,
TYP.

NEW PERMEABLE
PAVER WALKWAY,
TYP. SEE CIVIL
DRAWINGS

CONCRETE
BAND, TYP. SEE
LANDSCAPE
DRAWING

50' FRONT YARD
SETBACK

EXISTING ONE STORY BUILDING
TO REMAIN

34' ROOF30' ROOF

30' ROOF

34' ROOF

50' SIDE YARD
SETBACK

80' SIDE YARD
SETBACK

EXISTING ONE STORY BUILDING TO
REMAIN

EX
IS

TI
NG

 B
UI

LD
IN

G 
SE

TB
AC

K
PR

OP
OS

ED
 B

UI
LD

IN
G 

SE
TB

AC
K 

AT
 R

OO
F 

LIN
E

PR
OP

OS
ED

 B
UI

LD
IN

G 
SE

TB
AC

K 
AT

 G
RO

UN
D 

FL
OO

R

EX
IS

TI
NG

 S
CR

EE
N 

W
AL

L S
ET

BA
CK

GREENBELT

EXISTING BUILDING SETBACK

PROPOSED BUILDING SETBACK

BM1BM1

BM1BM1BM1

TT

SHEET NUMBER

1

SHEET TITLE

2

VDTA PROJECT NUMBER

PROJECT TEAM

3

4

5

6

7

8

MLKJHGFEDCBA

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

© 2013 VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN ASSOCIATES, INC

PROJECT NAME

PROJECT ADDRESS

ARCHITECT

VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN ASSOC.
500 N. DEARBORN, 9TH FLOOR
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60654
312.260.7300
www.buildordie.com

ARCHITECT STAMP

CONSULTANT

CONSULTANT PROJECT NUMBER

JOSEPH VALERIO
CHRISTINE McGRATH BREUER
JENNIFER COOPER
MICHAEL KIRSCHNER

12123.00

A0-01

Walsh College
Livernois Road and
Interiors

3838 Livernois Rd
Troy, MI
48083

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

 1/16" = 1'-0"A0-01
1 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

Issue

No. Issued for Date

1 25% SCHEMATIC
DESIGN

11.25.2013

2 PRELIMINARY SITE
PLAN REVIEW

01.10.2014

3 ZONING BOARD OF
APPEALS

01.22.2014

4 PRELIM. SITE PLAN
REVIEW REVISED

02.03.2014



UP

UP

UP

-
-

A2-01
2A

- -A2-01 1A

A A.5 B D E

01

01a

02

02a

03

04

05

06

07

3701 SF

OPEN OFFICE
101A

79 SF

CONSULT ROOM
107

84 SF

CONSULT ROOM
108

84 SF

CONSULT ROOM
109

84 SF

CONSULT ROOM
110

84 SF

CONSULT ROOM
111

84 SF

CONSULT ROOM
112

93 SF

MEETING ROOM
114

134 SF

MEETING ROOM
115

93 SF

MEETING ROOM
116

131 SF

COPY / WORK
117

171 SF

WORK ROOM
135

167 SF

WORK ROOM
136

167 SF

ELEC.
137

166 SF

MECH.
138

1247 SF

AUDITORIUM
139

130 SF

WORK ROOM
127

125 SF

WORK ROOM
128

125 SF

WORK ROOM
129

129 SF

WORK ROOM
130

94 SF

STUDY ROOM
131

93 SF

STUDY ROOM
132

95 SF

STUDY ROOM
134

275 SF

ALUMNI
122

141 SF

MEETING
141

141 SF

MEETING
142

280 SF

MEN
143

274 SF

WOMEN
144

541 SF

SKYLIGHT LOUNGE
147

178 SF

STAIR THREE
STR-03

571 SF

TESTING CENTER
149

95 SF

TUTORING
150

176 SF

VETERAN'S ROOM
113

341 SF

IT ROOM (TO REMAIN)
118

1201 SF

SUCCESS CENTER
140

1414 SF

SOUTH CORRIDOR
COR-04

422 SF

EAST CORRIDOR
COR-03

95 SF

TUTORING
151

300 SF

EXISTING LAUNCH PAD
152

166 SF

ADJUNCT FACULTY
145

190 SF

BREAK ROOM
146

1010 SF

EXISTING CLASSROOM
153

1005 SF

EXISTING CLASSROOM
154

EXISTING SERVEY
155

1923 SF

EXISTING CAFETERIA
156

137 SF

COPY / WORK AREA
103

325 SF

STAIR ONE
STR-01

59 SF

SOUTH ELEVATOR
ELEV-01

141 SF

TEST CHECK-IN
148

-

993 SF

NORTHWEST CORRIDOR
COR-01

431 SF

WEST CORRIDOR
COR-02

34 SF

GREEN ROOM
102

122 SF

INTERVIEW 1
104

CPT-2

122 SF

INTERVIEW 2
105

158 SF

INTERVIEW 3
106

31 SF

STORAGE
121

173 SF

HELP DESK
126

1563 SF

STUDENT LOUNGE
120

222 SF

EXISTING UTILITY
167

210 SF

EXISTING ELEC. ROOM
168

729 SF

ONE STOP CHECK-IN
100

1347 SF

OPEN OFFICE
101B

51 SF

CLOSET
101

82 SF

VESTIBULE
119

31 SF

STORAGE
124

180 SF

STUDENT GROUPS
123

133 SF

O.I.T.
125

47 SF

PANTRY
103A

NIC

120 SF

EXISTING ELECTRICAL
172

147 SF

STAIR TWO
STR-02

EL. = 0' - 0"

EL. = 0' - 0"

EL. = 0' - 0"

EL. = 0' - 5"

30
' - 

0"
32

' - 
3"

26
' - 

9"
13

' - 
0"

16
' - 

9"
10

' - 
0"

16
' - 

6"
6' 

- 0
"

376 SF

ENTRY AREA
174

S.S. RECEPTION DESK
WITH PRIVACY
PARTITIONS, TYP.

13' - 6" 15' - 6" 24' - 3" 18' - 1 1/2" 29' - 10 1/2"

6' 
- 3

 1/
2"

15' - 9"
2' - 0"

17
' - 

1"

P.LAM WORK COUNTER
ON FILE STORAGE

CEILING ABOVE, TYP. P.LAM WORK COUNTER
ON FILE STORAGE

2' - 0"

17
' - 

1"

23' - 4"

NEW STOREFRONT AT
EXISTING EXTERIOR WALL

12' - 0" 4' - 0"

NEW STOREFRONT AT
EXISTING INTERIOR WALL

12' - 0" 4' - 0"

NEW STOREFRONT AT
EXISTING INTERIOR WALL

NEW MILLWORK BENCH
SEATING WITH SS TABLES,
TYP.

2' - 7" 5' - 7 3/4"

6"

1' 
- 6

"

1' 
- 8

"

1' 
- 6

"
2' 

- 4
"

16
' - 

0"
16

' - 
0"

NEW SS
COUNTER,
TYP.

42' - 6"

31' - 7 3/4"

NEW P. LAM WORK
SURFACE

2' 
- 6

"

2' 
- 6

"

EXISTING SKYLIGHT
ABOVE TO REMAIN,
TYP.

P. LAM COUNTER WITH P.LAM
BASE AND UPPER CABINETS

11' - 11 1/4"

P. LAM WORK
SURFACE

11' - 11 1/4"

13
' - 

10
 1/

2"

2' - 7 3/4"

NEW
DRINKING
FOUNTAIN

NEW
PROJECTOR
SCREEN, TYP.

UP

UP

NEW FLAT SCREEN
MONITOR, TYP.

NEW FLAT SCREEN
MONITOR, TYP.

NEW P.LAM
WORK SURFACE

17
' - 

6 1
/4"

NEW P.LAM WORK
SURFACE

NEW FLAT SCREEN
MONITOR, TYP.

10
' - 

0"

2' - 0"

NEW SS RECEPTION
DESK

NEW P. LAM
RECEPTION DESK

6' 
- 9

 1/
4"

2' - 0"

16' - 6"

2' - 0"

C

P.LAM WORK COUNTER AND P.LAM
BASE AND UPPER CABINETS

SHEET NUMBER

1

SHEET TITLE

2

VDTA PROJECT NUMBER

PROJECT TEAM

3

4

5

6

7

8

MLKJHGFEDCBA

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

© 2014 VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN ASSOCIATES, INC

PROJECT NAME

PROJECT ADDRESS

ARCHITECT

VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN ASSOC.
500 N. DEARBORN, 9TH FLOOR
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60654
312.260.7300
www.buildordie.com

ARCHITECT STAMP

CONSULTANT

CONSULTANT PROJECT NUMBER

JOSEPH VALERIO
CHRISTINE McGRATH BREUER
JENNIFER COOPER
MICHAEL KIRSCHNER

12123.00

A1‐01

Walsh College
Livernois Road and
Interiors

3838 Livernois Rd
Troy, MI
48083

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

 1/8" = 1'-0"A1-01
1 FIRST FLOOR PLAN AREA A

Issue

No. Issued for Date

1 25% SCHEMATIC
DESIGN

11.25.2013

2 PRELIMINARY SITE
PLAN REVIEW

01.10.2014

3 PRELIMINARY SITE
PLAN REVIEW
REVISED

02.03.2015



DN

DN

DN

--

-
-

-

-A2-01
6A

-

A2-01
2A

- -A2-01 1A

A A.5 B D E

01

01a

02

02a

03

04

05

06

07

GREEN ROOF

OUTDOOR PATIO

1489 SF

BOARD ROOM
209

234 SF

MEETING ROOM
202

89 SF

FOCUS ROOM
203

89 SF

FOCUS ROOM
204

89 SF

FOCUS ROOM
205

89 SF

FOCUS ROOM
206

150 SF

MEETING ROOM
207

27 SF

STORAGE
224

187 SF

WOMEN
217

208 SF

MEN
218

52 SF

DATA
216

83 SF

STORAGE
215

603 SF

FITNESS CENTER
214

60 SF

MEN
213

645 SF

KITCHEN / PANTRY
211

62 SF

WOMEN
212

45 SF

JANITOR'S CLOSET
219

2623 SF

OPEN OFFICE
200

2145 SF

OFFICERS
201

735 SF

FACULTY / ADMIN LOUNGE
210

30 SF

PHONE ROOM
222

113 SF

MOTHER'S ROOM
221

1176 SF

SOUTH CORRIDOR
COR-09

128 SF

MEETING ROOM
225

325 SF

STAIR ONE
STR-01

-

178 SF

STAIR THREE
STR-03

128 SF

MEETING ROOM
226

30 SF

PHONE ROOM
223

A2-014A

EL. = 15' - 4"

EL. = 15' - 4"

EL. = 15' - 4"

51' - 10"

OPEN TO BELOW

GLASS GUARD
RAIL

30 SF

ELECTRICAL CLOSET
220

GLASS GUARD
RAIL

GLASS SHOWER WALL
AND DOOR, TYP.

20
' - 

2 1
/2"

81' - 10"

28
' - 

6 3
/4"

ALL EXPOSED STRUCTURAL STEEL IS TO BE
CONSIDERED DECORATIVE METAL AND
FINISHED WITH A HIGH PERFORMANCE
COATING

ALL EXPOSED STRUCTURAL STEEL
IS TO BE CONSIDERED DECORATIVE
METAL AND FINISHED WITH A HIGH
PERFORMANCE COATING

C

SCREENING WALL - WOOD SLAT WALL (BOTH
SIDES) TO MATCH PATIO PAVERS APPEARANCE
WITH STRUCTURAL SUPPORT FRAME AND
DECORATIVE PLANT SUPPORT BRACKETS
(T/WALL +23'-4 LEVEL)

P.LAM WORK SURFACE ON
STORAGE FILES

P.LAM WORK SURFACE ON
STORAGE FILES

P.LAM WORK SURFACE ON
STORAGE FILES

SS COUNTER WITH P.LAM
BASE CABINETS

EDGE OF CEILING ABOVE

EDGE OF CEILING ABOVE EDGE OF CEILING ABOVE

EDGE OF CEILING ABOVE

SS COUNTER WITH
P.LAM BASE AND UPPER
CABINETS

SS COUNTER ISLAND
WITH P.LAM BASE
CABINETS

SHEET NUMBER

1

SHEET TITLE

2

VDTA PROJECT NUMBER

PROJECT TEAM

3

4

5

6

7

8

MLKJHGFEDCBA

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

© 2013 VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN ASSOCIATES, INC

PROJECT NAME

PROJECT ADDRESS

ARCHITECT

VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN ASSOC.
500 N. DEARBORN, 9TH FLOOR
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60654
312.260.7300
www.buildordie.com

ARCHITECT STAMP

CONSULTANT

CONSULTANT PROJECT NUMBER

JOSEPH VALERIO
CHRISTINE McGRATH BREUER
JENNIFER COOPER
MICHAEL KIRSCHNER

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

12123.00

A1‐02

Walsh College
Livernois Road and
Interiors

3838 Livernois Rd
Troy, MI
48083

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

 1/8" = 1'-0"A1-02
1 SECOND FLOOR PLAN

Issue

No. Issued for Date

1 25% SCHEMATIC
DESIGN

11.25.2013

2 PRELIMINARY SITE
PLAN REVIEW

01.10.2014

3 PRELIMINARY SITE
PLAN REVIEW
REVISED

02.03.2015



T/ LEVEL ONE
EL. +0' - 0"

T/ UPPER ROOF
EL. +34' - 0"

T/ LEVEL TWO
EL. +15' - 4"

T/ LOWER ROOF
EL. +30' - 0"

EXISTING TO REMAIN

ST-1

GL-1

MT-2

RTU SCREEN (MT-2)T/ SCREEN
EL. +39' - 0"

T/ LEVEL ONE
EL. +0' - 0"

T/ SCREEN WALL
EL. +6' - 10"

T/ UPPER ROOF
EL. +34' - 0"

T/ LEVEL TWO
EL. +15' - 4"

T/ LOWER ROOF
EL. +30' - 0"

CW-1

CW-1

ST-1

BR-1BR TO MATCH EXISTING

EXISTING TO REMAIN

EXISTING SCREEN WALL NEW SCREEN WALL

BR-1

EXTERIOR MATERIALS LEGEND
TYPE DESCRIPTION

MT-1 INSULATED METAL PANEL SYSTEM,
PAINTED FINISH

RIBBED METAL PANEL SYSTEM,
PAINTED FINISH

KAWNEER 1600 WALL SYSTEM 2 WITH
1" INSULATED CLEAR VISION GLASS
WITH LOW E COATING

8" STONE MASONRY UNIT UNIQUE
BOND
ALT.1 - UTILITY BRICK

UTILITY BRICK

CLERESTORY WINDOW WITH 1"
INSULATED CLEAR VISION GLASS
WITH LOW E COATING

1 1/8" TEMPERED CLEAR GLASS
PANEL HANDRAIL

CL-1

GL-1

BR-1

CW-1

ST-1

MT-2

T/ LEVEL ONE
EL. +0' - 0"

T/ UPPER ROOF
EL. +34' - 0"

T/ LEVEL TWO
EL. +15' - 4"

T/ LOWER ROOF
EL. +30' - 0"

MT-2 BR-1

EXISTING TO REMAIN

GL-1

T/ SCREEN
EL. +39' - 0"

RTU SCREEN (MT-2)

T/ LEVEL ONE
EL. +0' - 0"

T/ UPPER ROOF
EL. +34' - 0"

T/ LEVEL TWO
EL. +15' - 4"

T/ LOWER ROOF
EL. +30' - 0"

CW-1 MT-1MT-1

ST-1 CW-1GL-1 EXISTING TO REMAIN

ST-1 CW-1

CW-1

RTU SCREEN (MT-2)
T/ SCREEN
EL. +39' - 0"

GL-1

SHEET NUMBER

1

SHEET TITLE

2

VDTA PROJECT NUMBER

PROJECT TEAM

3

4

5

6

7

8

MLKJHGFEDCBA

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

© 2013 VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN ASSOCIATES, INC

PROJECT NAME

PROJECT ADDRESS

ARCHITECT

VALERIO DEWALT TRAIN ASSOC.
500 N. DEARBORN, 9TH FLOOR
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60654
312.260.7300
www.buildordie.com

ARCHITECT STAMP

CONSULTANT

CONSULTANT PROJECT NUMBER

JOSEPH VALERIO
CHRISTINE McGRATH BREUER
JENNIFER COOPER
MICHAEL KIRSCHNER

12123.00

A2-01

Walsh College
Livernois Road and
Interiors

3838 Livernois Rd
Troy, MI
48083

ELEVATIONS

 1/8" = 1'-0"A2-01
5A SOUTH ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"A2-01
1 NORTH ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"A2-01
2 EAST ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"A2-01
3 WEST ELEVATION

Issue

No. Issued for Date

1 25% SCHEMATIC
DESIGN

11.25.2013

2 PRELIMINARY SITE
PLAN REVIEW

01.10.2014

3 ZONING BOARD OF
APPEALS

01.22.2014

4 PRELIM. SITE PLAN
REVIEW REVISED

02.03.2014

5 PRELIM. SITE PLAN
REVIEW REVISED 2

03.11.2014



0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.8

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.5

0.8

1.1

1.0

1.1

1.3

1.0

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.7

1.2

1.1

1.2

1.4

1.4

1.1

0.9

0.8

1.0

1.1

0.9

0.7

0.5

0.7

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.9

1.2

1.9

2.4

3.0

2.8

1.8

1.2

1.0

1.2

1.2

1.0

0.7

0.5

10.1

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.2

1.6

2.0

2.1

2.6

2.5

2.2

1.7

1.5

1.3

1.2

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.6

2.0

2.5

2.8

3.0

2.7

2.4

2.1

1.6

1.0

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.1

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.1

2.6

3.0

3.9

4.1

3.3

2.8

1.6

1.2

1.0

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

18.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.5

3.2

3.6

3.9

3.5

2.5

1.8

1.2

0.9

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.8

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

1.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.7

3.5

3.9

4.0

3.4

2.4

1.6

1.3

0.9

0.9

1.0

1.1

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.7

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.9

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.7

3.6

4.0

4.1

3.5

2.5

1.6

1.2

1.1

0.8

0.9

1.0

1.0

0.9

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.6

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.6

3.5

3.9

4.0

3.4

2.4

1.7

1.3

0.9

0.9

1.1

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

1.3

1.3

0.7

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

3.1

2.9

1.2

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

5.6

4.5

1.6

0.6

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

4.5

3.8

1.4

0.6

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.9

1.9

0.9

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.7

0.8

15.4

0.6

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.4

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.0

1.2

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.6

2.7

1.1

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

4.9

4.7

1.6

0.7

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

4.5

4.4

1.6

0.6

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.0

2.3

1.0

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.8

1.0

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.4

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.9

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

2.0

1.0

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

4.3

1.6

0.7

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

5.3

1.8

0.8

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

3.4

1.4

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

1.5

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

1.3

0.9

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.0

0.9

3.0

1.4

0.8

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.9

1.0

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.4

5.4

2.0

1.0

0.7

0.7

0.8

1.0

1.3

1.6

1.9

2.1

2.2

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

5.3

2.0

1.1

0.9

0.9

1.0

1.2

1.6

2.0

2.6

2.9

3.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

1.6

2.9

1.4

1.0

1.0

1.3

1.3

1.7

1.9

2.5

3.1

3.7

3.9

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

6.0

0.4

0.3

11.7

1.0

1.4

1.0

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.5

2.1

2.4

3.0

3.9

3.9

4.1

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

1.1

1.1

0.7

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.8

2.5

2.5

3.5

4.5

3.9

4.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.7

1.1

1.4

2.6

3.1

2.7

3.3

3.5

3.3

3.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

1.0

1.3

1.7

2.5

2.3

2.9

2.5

2.2

2.1

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.8

1.0

1.2

2.1

2.1

2.5

1.7

1.6

1.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.6

0.9

0.9

1.4

1.8

2.0

1.2

1.2

1.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

1.1

0.5

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.0

1.4

1.4

1.4

0.9

1.1

1.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

2.8

0.4

0.5

0.7

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.2

1.1

1.0

1.2

1.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.8

1.1

1.3

1.4

1.3

1.1

1.1

1.3

1.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.3

1.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.8

0.9

0.9

1.0

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.8

0.8

0.9

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.4

1.5

1.7

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.8

0.9

1.0

1.1

1.3

1.4

1.4

1.5

1.6

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.1

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.3

1.3

1.5

1.5

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.2

1.5

1.6

1.5

1.3

1.3

1.5

1.5

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.8

1.2

1.4

1.8

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.5

1.4

0.5

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.3

1.7

2.2

3.0

3.6

0.6

0.7

1.0

1.6

5.3

2.1

2.7

3.7

4.9

0.2

0.8

1.4

1.5

2.5

2.7

3.4

4.5

5.1

0.2

0.9

1.4

1.6

3.1

2.8

3.8

5.4

5.5

0.3

1.1

1.6

1.9

3.6

3.4

4.0

5.4

5.0

1.1

1.6

1.8

3.1

3.1

3.6

4.9

4.0

0.9

1.3

1.5

2.7

2.7

3.1

3.6

3.0

0.7

1.1

1.3

1.6

2.2

2.6

2.5

2.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

5

5

5

0.5

0.75

0.75

1
1

1.5

1.5

2

2

5

1" = 20'-0"

1

SITE PHOTOMETRIC CALCULATIONS - NEW WORK

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE

PROJECT NAME

PROJECT ADDRESS

ES1-00

Walsh College
Livernois Road and
Interiors

3838 Livernois Rd
Troy, MI
48083

Issue

No. Issued for Date

1

Preliminary Site Plan Reveiw

01.10.2014

2

50% Design Development

02.03.2014

EXISTING LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE

3

Preliminary Site Plan Review

Revised

03.11.2014



 

   
 

Memorandum 
 
PROJECT: Walsh College Livernois & Interiors Renovations 
SES PROJECT NO: 2013.660.02 
DATE: June 5, 2013 
CONTACT(S): Matthew Paterson – Strategic Energy Solutions (SES) 

 
SUBJECT: Preliminary Site Plan Review Revised – Lighting Control Narrative 
 
 
The new exterior lighting associated with the northern elevation will be controlled via 
contact from the existing exterior lighting control such that all the exterior lighting 
illuminates at the same time.  The new exterior lighting fixtures associated with the 
northern elevation have optics that prevent direct line of sight with the lamp to minimize 
glare.  All lighting fixtures are designed to direct the light downwards toward the ground 
with exception of the flood lights that will illuminate the free-standing canopy at the 
northeast entry.  The flood lights will be aimed toward the top of the canopy and will be 
positioned to minimize glare. 
 
Interior lighting on the first and second floors that will be visible from the northern 
elevation is mainly limited to recessed lay-in fixtures with regressed lenses that will 
minimize glare.  All interior lighting with a direct line of sight to any openings in the 
envelope will be reduced by at least 50% between the hours of 11PM and 5AM. 
 
 
 
 





PC 2013.03.25 
Agenda Item # 9 

      
 

 
 
 
DATE: March 20, 2014 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number 

CR 011) – Proposed Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West side of 
Livernois, North of Town Center (3409 Livernois), Section 21, From O (Office) 
District to BB (Big Beaver) District 

 
The applicant, Amber Properties Company, seeks a conditional rezoning of the subject parcel 
from O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District. The applicant submitted a standard 
rezoning application that was considered on numerous occasions by the Planning 
Commission. The rezoning was denied by City Council on January 27, 2014. The applicant 
had also submitted a separate Preliminary Site Plan application for a five-story building, 61 
feet in height. The applicant has submitted a new conditional rezoning application, including a 
revised site plan for a four-story building, approximately 51 feet in height. A condition offered 
by the applicant is the Preliminary Site Plan, which will control the future development of the 
site. 
 
The site is within the Big Beaver classification in the City of Troy Master Plan. This 
classification supports residential development along the Big Beaver Corridor.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the rezoning request. CWA prepared the report with input from 
various City departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire. City 
Management supports the findings of fact contained in the report and agrees with the 
recommendation.   
 
A Planning Commission public hearing has been scheduled for March 25, 2014.   
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. City of Troy Master Plan (excerpt) 
3. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  

 
G:\Conditional Rezoning\CR-011  Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts  Sec 21\PC Memo 03 25 2014.doc 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING - CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 011) 
– Proposed Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West side of Livernois, North of 
Town Center (3409 Livernois), Section 21, From O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) 
District 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-03- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the O to BB conditional rezoning request, which incorporates Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval, as per Section 16.04 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, located on 
the west side of Livernois, north of Town Center (3409 Livernois), within Section 21, 
being approximately 1.23 acres in size, be granted, subject to the following 
conditions:  
 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
MOTION PASSED / FAILED 
 

 

 
G:\Conditional Rezoning\CR-011  Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts  Sec 21\Proposed PC Resolution cr-
011 2013 03 25.doc 



3409 Livernois, CR 011

1: 1,000

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

830167 167Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

3/3/2014

Legend:

Street Name Text



3409 Livernois, CR 011

1: 1,200

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1000200 200Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

3/3/2014

Legend:

Street Name Text

Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



101

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Big Beaver Road: 

A World Class Boulevard

Home to large, landmark projects and • 
mixed-use regional destinations.
Central gathering area of the community.• 
A collection of international corporations, • 
local companies, and establishments which 
complement these high-visibility uses. 

The Big Beaver Road corridor is responsible 
for the fi rst impression many people have 
throughout Michigan when they think of the 
City of Troy.    The high-rise buildings, Somerset 
Collection, and its immediate proximity to 
I-75 are frequently the main elements visitors 
remember about the Corridor and the City.   In 

order to remain competitive and continue 

to be a leader in economic development 

in Southeast Michigan, Troy must plan for 

this Corridor to evolve in light of a changing 

economy.  In that spirit, the City adopted the 
key concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor Study in 
2006:

Gateways, Districts and Transitions • 
Trees and Landscape as Ceilings and Walls • 
Walking Becomes Entertainment - Much to • 
Observe & Engage In 
Mixing the Uses Turns on the Lights - • 
Energetic Dynamic of Mixed Uses with a 
Focus on Residential 

The Automobile & Parking are No Longer #1. • 
Civic Art as the Wise Sage of the Boulevard• 

The uses and character of this future 

land use category are driven by the 

recommendations of the Big Beaver Corridor 

Study and subsequent eff orts of the Planning 

Commission to create new zoning techniques 

to implement those recommendations.

This Study provided a comprehensive analysis 
of the existing and potential characteristics 
of this important area.  The planned future 
land uses in the Big Beaver Corridor are in 
large part considered mixed-use, to allow for a 
wave of new residential development and the 
redevelopment of individual sites to make a 
more meaningful contribution to the quality of 
life of the City.  The main diff erence between the 
various mixed-use districts planned in the Study 
is building height.  The intended characteristics 
of the various districts are also very diff erent, 
and are the topic of in-depth analysis in the 
Study.  Some important recommendations of 
that Study are listed below.  

Moving toward the creation of distinct • 
physical districts by building from lot line to 
lot line along the right-of-way rather than 
continuing to be a collection of isolated 
towers.    

Becoming fl exible with land use • 
relationships.  The use of vertically 
integrated mixed-use commercial, offi  ce 
and residential towers should be promoted.  
The use of prominent ground fl oor retail, 
restaurants and cafes allows visual interest 
and activity for visitors and residents.      

Contain parking in structures that are shared • 
by surrounding developments.  Do not allow 
off -street parking to be visible from major 
thoroughfares.  

Landscape Big Beaver and intersecting • 
thoroughfares with rows of mature trees.

BIG BEAVER ROAD



102 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT
This will be a vibrant high-rise business and • 
residential district.  

Pedestrian use will be promoted through • 
massive landscaping, wide sidewalks, 
outdoor cafes, and public art.  

The Big Beaver Corridor Study and Big • 
Beaver Development Code provide for a 
specifi c land development pattern.   

Architectural design must create an • 
interesting visual experience for both 
sidewalk users at close range and for those 
viewing the skyline from a distance.

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Parking should be located in rear yards.• 

Development should include intense street • 
tree planting along Big Beaver.

Cafes, plazas, parks and similar amenities to • 
draw pedestrians will be encouraged.

Buildings will frame the street network by • 
building to the front and side property lines.  
Exceptions for cafes, plazas and access roads 
may be permitted.  

BUILDING DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Buildings should rise in height toward • 
Crooks Road in the east-west direction.  

Buildings should rise in height toward Big • 
Beaver in the north-south direction.

Ground level stories should be a minimum of • 
twelve feet in height; with large expanses of 
transparent glass.  

Fenestration at the ground level should be • 
highlighted through the use of awnings, 
overhangs or trim detailing, and building 
caps or roofs should provide a visually 
interesting skyline.

Concept Sketch from the Big Beaver Corridor Study; Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc.

Big Beaver Corridor Study; Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc.



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
Date:  March 13, 2014 

 

Conditional Rezoning and Preliminary Site Plan Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Jerome S. Amber, Amber Properties Company 
 380 N. Crooks Road 
 Clawson, Michigan 48017 
 
Project Name: Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts 
 
Plan Date: January 10, 2014 
 
Location: Northwest corner of Livernois Road and Town Center Drive 
 
Zoning: O, Office District, requesting rezoning to BB, Big Beaver District 
 
Action Requested: Conditional Rezoning and Preliminary Site Plan Approval 
 
Required Information: Noted Below 
 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROJECT STATUS 
 
The Amber Properties Company is requesting a conditional rezoning of the Northwest corner of 
Livernois Road and Town Center Drive from O, Office District to BB, Big Beaver Form Based District.  The 
1.2 acre parcel is currently vacant.    The purpose of the rezoning is to construct a five (5) story, 49’-8” 
tall, 46-unit residential development on the vacant parcel.    
 
At the December 10, 2013 meeting the Planning Commission recommended approval of a rezoning of 
the property; however the rezoning was not granted by the City Council.  Subsequently, the applicant 
has resubmitted their application as a conditional rezoning. A condition of the conditional rezoning is 
the approval of the site plan as submitted.  The condition of the site plan as part of the conditional 
rezoning alleviates potential concerns over future development of this site.  Please note that the revised 
application reduces the height of the building by one story and approximately 11 feet, and reduces the 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

number of units by 14.  If the Planning Commission recommends the conditional rezoning and approves 
the Site Plan, the site plan approval is conditioned on the City Council granting the conditional rezoning.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
 
The property is located on the northwest corner of Livernois Road and Town Center Drive. 
 

 
 
Surrounding Zoning: 
A table summarizing zoning of the surrounding areas is as follows. 
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  O, Office Office 
South CF, Community Facilities Park, Municipal Office 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

East R-1E, One-Family Residential Vacant, Residential 
West O, Office Office 
 
 
MASTER PLAN 
 
The site is located within the area designated as Big Beaver in the Master Plan.  The Big Beaver 
designation responds to the recommendations set forth in the Big Beaver Corridor Study, which 
promotes higher density, vertically integrated mixed-use commercial, office, and residential uses.  The 
Plan encourages increased residential units along and in proximity to Big Beaver. Development of 
residential uses should be designed with a strong orientation towards the roadway corridor to support 
pedestrian activity and frame the street.    
 
Neighboring zoning, land use, and master plan designations are summarized in the following chart:  
 

 Property in 
Question 

NORTH South  East West  

Zoning  O O CF R-1F  O 
Land Use Vacant Office Park Vacant/Res.  Office  
Master Plan Big Beaver Big Beaver Public Residential Big Beaver  
 
Based on the provided site plan, which meets the requirements of the Big Beaver form-based zoning, 
the proposed use of the property as residential is consistent with the Master Plan.  
 
Items to be addressed:  None. 
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL   
 
The City has an abundance of land zoned and used for office purposes.  With the current vacancy rate, it 
is unlikely that office use of the property is reasonable in the foreseeable future.  The applicants 
proposed residential development is not permitted under the current O, Office zoning.    
 
Items to be addressed:  None. 
 
BUILDING ARRANGEMENT 
 
The proposed building is oriented toward the southeast corner of the site and accessed via two (2) 
drives of Town Center Drive.   The applicant is placing the building 54-feet from the northern property 
line.  The building is located approximately 67-feet and 110-feet from the office buildings to the north 
and approximately 350-feet from the nearest single family residential home.   
 
Parking is proposed on the western and northern portions of the site, and also on the ground floor of 
the development in the form of two (2) car garages.  A cross access point is located along the northern 
property line.     
 
 Items to be addressed:  None 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Table 5.03.B.2, Building Form B of Section 5.03, Standards Applicable to All Districts of the Zoning 
Ordinance establishes the dimensional requirements for the BB, Big Beaver District.  The requirements 
and proposed dimensions are as follows: 
 

 
Items to be addressed:  None. 
 
PARKING 
 
Section 13.06.G of the Zoning Ordinance requires: 
 

Multiple-Family Residential Required Provided 
Per each dwelling unit: 2 spaces X 46 standard units= 92 spaces 94 spaces 

Barrier-Free Parking Required Provided 
Barrier-free spaces: 92 spaces X 2%= 2 spaces 2 spaces 
 
Curbing is proposed for the parking lot per the requirement in Section 13.06.J.2, Off-Street Parking Lot 
Design.   
 
Items to be addressed:  None 
 
DESIGN STANDARDS 
 
The Big Beaver design standards provide the Planning Commission with direction when reviewing the 
proposed design features of this development.  
 
Façade Variation.  
 
The maximum linear length of an uninterrupted building façade facing public streets and/or parks shall 
be thirty (30) feet.   

 Required Provided Compliance 

Front (Town Center Dr.) 10 foot build-to-line 10 feet Complies 

Front (Livernois) 10 foot build-to-line 10 feet Complies 

Side (north) N/A, building may be placed 
up to property line 54 feet Complies 

Rear (west) 30-foot  minimum setback 96 feet Complies 

Building Height Maximum 6  stories, 72 feet, 
Minimum 2 stories, 14 feet 

5-stories,  
51’ to top of parapet wall  Complies 

Minimum Open Space 15% 16.67% Complies 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
5  P a g e  

Through the use of material changes, projections, façade articulation and fenestration, the building 
complies with this standard.    
 
Pedestrian Access / Entrance. 

a. Primary Entrance:  The primary building entrance shall be clearly identifiable and useable and 
located in the front façade parallel to the street.   
 
Building entrances are provided on Livernois Road and Town Center Drive.  
 

b. Pedestrian Connection. The pedestrian connection shall be fully paved and maintained surface 
not less than five (5) feet in width. 
 
The applicant has provided an 8-foot wide sidewalk along Rochester Road and a 6-foot wide 
sidewalk along Town Center Drive.   

 
c. Additional Entrances. In addition to the primary façade facing front façade and/or the right-of-

way, if a parking area is located in the rear or side yard, must also have a direct pedestrian 
access to the parking area that is of a level of materials quality and design emphasis at least 
equal to that of the primary entrance.  Complies 

 
Ground Story Activation. 
 
The first floor of any front façade facing a right-of-way shall be no less than fifty (50) percent windows 
and doors, and the minimum transparency for facades facing a side street, side yard, or parking area 
shall be no less than 30 percent of the façade.  Transparency alternatives are permitted up to 80% of the 
50% total along the front of buildings, and up to 100% of the sides of buildings.  The minimum 
transparency requirement shall apply to all sides of a building that abut an open space, including a side 
yard, or public right-of-way.  Transparency requirements shall not apply to sides which abut an alley.   
 
The applicant meets the transparency requirement.   
 
Transitional Features 
 

a. Transitional features are architectural elements, site features, or alterations to building massing 
that are used to provide a transition between higher intensity uses and low- or moderate-density 
residential areas.  These features assist in mitigating potential conflicts between those uses.  
Transitional features are intended to be used in combination with landscape buffers or large 
setbacks. 

 
The applicant is providing a ten (10) foot greenbelt along the northern property line adjacent 
to the office uses.   The applicant is placing the building 54-feet from the northern property 
line.  The building is located approximately 67-feet and 110-feet from the office buildings to 
the north and approximately 350-feet from the nearest single family residential home.   
 

b. Intensity. A continuum of use intensity, where moderate intensity uses are sited between high-
intensity uses and low-intensity uses, shall be developed for multi-building developments. An 
example would be an office use between commercial and residential uses. 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
6  P a g e  

The hours and intensity of site activity for a residential use varies from the office use that is 
located to the north and west.  The intensity of the different uses shall not adversely impact 
each other.  
 

c. Height and Mass. Building height and mass in the form of building step-backs, recess lines or 
other techniques shall be graduated so that structures with higher intensity uses are 
comparable in scale with adjacent structures of lower-intensity uses. 
 
The applicant has reduced the height of the building as first proposed.  The applicant has 
applied vertical and horizontal elements including sloped roofs and building insets to reduce 
the scaling and mass.  Furthermore, the applicant has located the building in the southwest 
corner of the site in the furthest location from adjacent development in order to provide 
additional buffer that will reduce the sense of mass.   
 

d. Architectural Features. Similarly sized and patterned architectural features such as windows, 
doors, arcades, pilasters, cornices, wall offsets, building materials, and other building 
articulations included on the lower-intensity use shall be incorporated in the transitional 
features. 
 

 The applicant has applied consistent architectural features through the building elevations.   
 
Site Access and Parking 
 

a. Required Parking.  Off-street parking shall be provided in accordance with the standards set 
forth in Article 13, Site Design Standards.   The applicant has provided the necessary parking.     
  

b. Location. 
I. When parking is located in a side yard (behind the front building line) but  fronts on the 

required building line, no more than fifty (50) percent of the  total site’s linear feet along 
the required building line or one hundred (100) feet, whichever is less, shall be occupied 
by parking.   All the parking is located to the side and rear of the building and complies 
with parking location requirements.    
 

II. For a corner lot, shall be no more than fifty (50) percent of the site’s cumulative linear 
feet along the required building lines or one hundred (100) feet, whichever is less, shall 
be occupied by parking.  The building shall be located in the corner of the lot adjacent to 
the intersection. Not Applicable  

 
III. For a double frontage lot or a lot that has frontage on three (3) streets, the  cumulative 

total of all frontages occupied by parking shall be no more  than sixty-five (65) percent of 
the total site’s linear feet along a required  building line or one hundred and twenty-five 
(125) feet, whichever is less. Not Applicable  

 
IV. Where off-street parking is visible from a street, it should be screened in accordance with 

the standards set forth in Section 13.02.C.  The applicant has screened their parking lot 
in compliance with section 13.0.2.C.   

  
Items to be Addressed: None  



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
7  P a g e  

 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 

 
Vehicular access and Circulation 
 
The site is accessed via two (2) drives from Livernois Road.  Access to the site is sufficient.  The applicant 
is providing a 3-foot separation with a concrete sidewalk and mountable curb between the 24-foot drive 
aisle and the face of the garage.  Access and circulation is sufficient.   
 
Pedestrian access and Walkways:  
 
The applicant will install an eight (8) foot concrete sidewalk on Livernois and a six (6) foot sidewalk on 
Town Center Drive.   Each townhome is directly accessible from the sidewalk on Town Center Drive.  The 
lofts are accessed via a common entrance that is accessible from the sidewalk on Town Center Drive.   
 
Items to be addressed:  None. 
 
LANDSCAPING 

 
The applicant has provided a landscape plan in accordance with these sections of the Zoning Ordinance:  
 

 Required: Provided: Compliance: 
Greenbelts (13.02.D) Livernois: The 
Ordinance requires that the greenbelt 
shall be landscaped with a minimum of 
one (1) deciduous tree for every thirty 
(30) lineal feet, or fraction thereof, of 
frontage abutting a public road right-of-
way.   

Approximately 
120 lineal feet 
of improved 
space along 
Livernois Road 
= four (4) trees 
 
Approximately 
440 lineal feet 
of improved 
space along 
Livernois Road 
= fifteen (15) 
trees. 
 
Required 19 
trees 

Nineteen (19) trees 
 

Complies 
 

Site Landscaping (13.02.E): A minimum of 
fifteen percent (15%) of the site area shall 
be comprised of landscape material. 

Total proposed 
site square 
feet= 8,067 
square feet 

16% Complies  

 
The applicant is proposing to screen the trash enclosure with a brick patterned poured concrete.    
 
Items to be addressed:  None. 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
8  P a g e  

PHOTOMETRICS 
 
The lighting plan indicates two (2) 25-foot high pole mounted lights, with two (2) lights on each pole, 
and five (5) 15-foot high pole mounted lights with one (1) light on each pole.  The submitted fixture 
meets ordinance compliance regarding full-cut off.  The submitted photometrics complies with Article 
13 of the Zoning Ordinance.     
  
Items to be Addressed:  None  
 
FLOOR PLAN AND ELEVATIONS 
 
The applicant has submitted floor plans and elevations.  The architecture complies with the Big Beaver 
Form Based District standards including the use of material changes, projections, façade articulation and 
fenestration and windows.  The architecture provides architectural detail as well as changes in 
horizontal and vertical scaling, variations in material, pattern, and color, to provide ground story 
activation.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Conditional Rezoning: 
 
We would recommend approval of the subject conditional rezoning for the following reasons: 
 

1) The request complies with the Master Plan. 
2) The Form-Based District would permit greater flexibility in use and development of the 

property.  
3) The abundance of Office District property in the City has been well documented.  
4) The rezoning would be compatible with surrounding zoning and land use.  
5) The site can be adequately served with municipal water and sewer.  
6) The condition of the site plan as part of the conditional rezoning alleviates potential concerns of 

future development of this site.   
 
Site Plan: 
 
We recommend approval of the site plan. 
 
Sincerely,  

      
 



TROY, MI
10-98 TOWN CENTER DR,

TROY, MI 48083

SHW GROUP
ARCHITECTS | ENGINEERS | PLANNERS

2338 COOLIDGE, SUITE 100
BERKLEY, MI 48072

T:248.336.4700
F:248.336.4701

www.shwgroup.com

KEM-TEC & ASSOCIATES
22556 GRATIOT AVENUE

EASTPOINTE, MI 48021
T.586.772.2222
F:586.772.4048

ARCHITECT
GEORGE HOUHANISIN

STATE OF MICHIGAN 27036

CIVIL ENGINEER
MATT KUEHN

STATE OF MICHIGAN 53214

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:1

3
:3

2
P

M

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

PROJECT COVER SHEET

G001
7113.037.00

SHEET INDEX

0
2
.2

8
.2

0
1
4

C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
R

E
Z

O
N

IN
G

R
E

V

GENERAL

G001 PROJECT COVER SHEET O

ARCHITECTURAL

AS01 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN O

A001 COMPOSITE FLOOR PLANS O

A002 COMPOSITE FLOOR PLANS O

A003 ROOF PLAN & BUILDING SECTIONS O

A201 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS O

A202 PEDESTRIAN LEVEL ACTIVATION O

ELECTRICAL

ES01 EXTERIOR SITE LIGHTING PLAN O

ES02 EXTERIOR SITE LIGHTING PLAN O

CIVIL

C-1 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY O

C-2 GRADING & UTILITY PLAN O

LANDSCAPE

L-1 LANDSCAPE PLAN O

L-2 LANDSCAPE DETAILS O

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV

ELECTRICAL ENGINEER
WILLIAM CHOMIC

STATE OF MICHIGAN 35463



SITE INFORMATION:

EXISTING SITE: LAND SITUATED IN THE CITY OF TROY, COUNTY OF
OAKLAND, STATE OF MICHIGAN IS DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:

LOT 5, EXCEPT THE SOUTH 5 FEET FOR ROAD,
"SUPERVISOR'S PLAT NO. 26", AS RECORDED IN
LIBER 57, PAGE 59, OF PLATS, OAKLAND COUNTY
RECORDS.

TAX ID: 20-21-426-010:
SUPERVISOR'S PLAT NO. 26, LOT 5 EXC. S.
10 FT. TAKEN FOR RD.

SITE AREA: 53,780 SQ FT(+/- 1.231 ACRES)

CURRENT ZONING: OFFICE DISTRICT

PROPOSED ZONING: BIG BEAVER DISTRICT

PROPOSED USE: APARTMENTS

PROPOSED MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL USE:
2 BEDROOM TOWNHOMES, 2 BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE,
1 BEDROOM APARTMENT, AND LOFT TERRACE UNITS (RENTAL).

46 UNITS PROPOSED - 2 PARKING SPACES / EACH DWELLING UNIT
(REQUIRED)

PARKING REQUIRED: 92 SPACES

PARKING PROVIDED: 92 SPACES +
2 SPACES BARRIER FREE =

94 TOTAL SPACES

PROPOSED BUILDING
FOOTPRINT: 17,205 SQ FT

PROPOSED OPEN SPACE: 8,966 SQ FT (OPEN) / 53,780 SQ FT (SITE) =
16.67%*

* 15% REQUIRED OPEN SPACE BASED ON TABLE 5.03.B.2
BUILDING FORM B

BUILDING SITE
COVERAGE: 17,205 SQ FT (GROUND FLOOR OF BLDG) /

53,780 SQ FT (SITE) = 31.99%

BUILDING INFORMATION:

OCCUPANCY USE: R-2

CONSTRUCTION TYPE: 3B

FIRST FLOOR AREA: 17,205 GROSS SQ FT
SECOND FLOOR AREA: 17,205 GROSS SQ FT
THIRD FLOOR AREA: 17,205 GROSS SQ FT
FOURTH FLOOR AREA: 16,980 GROSS SQ FT
MEZZANINE FLOOR AREA: 3,602 GROSS SQ FT
TOTAL: 68,595 GROSS SQ FT*

*MEZZANINES DO NOT CONTRIBUTE TO EITHER THE BUILDING AREA
OR THE NUMBER OF STORIES AS REGULATED BY MBC SECTION 503.1

SETBACK INFORMATION:

PROPERTY SETBACKS SUBJECT TO SETBACK REQUIREMENTS AS FOLLOWS PER
TABLE 5.03.B.2 BUILDING FORM B, UNLESS OTHERWISE
ALLOWED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION:

FRONT: REAR: SIDE:
MINIMUM: N/A MINIMUM: 30'-0" MINIMUM: N/A
MAXIMUM: 60'-0" MAXIMUM: NONE MAXIMUM: NONE

THE PROPOSED BUILDING SETBACKS ARE:
FRONT (SOUTH AND EAST) BUILD TO LINE: 10'-0" TO FACE OF BUILDING
REAR (NORTH): 54'-0" TO FACE OF BUILDING
SIDE (WEST): 96'-0" TO FACE OF BUILDING

BUILDING HEIGHT INFORMATION:

THE PROPOSED BUILDING HEIGHT IS 49'-8" TO THE MID POINT OF
THE ROOF. THE TOP OF THE PARAPET WALL IS 51'-0".

APARTMENTS TYPES UNIT TYPE QUANTITY

ONE BEDROOM

TWO BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE

TWO BEDROOM TOWNHOME

LOFT TERRACE

TOWN HOUSE TERRACE

(1)

(2T)

(2TH)

(LT)

(THT)

1

1

21

22

1

46 UNITS

BARRIER FREE REQUIREMENTS:

BARRIER FREE PARKING:
2% OF THE TOTAL NUMBER OF SPACES REQUIRED. (MIN OF 1)
(2 BARRIER FREE SPACES ARE REQUIRED FOR
THE 94 SPACES PROVIDED.)

BARRIER FREE DWELLING UNITS:
2% OF TOTAL UNITS ARE REQUIRED TO BE
"TYPE A" (MIN OF 1) PER MBC 1107.6.2.1.1.
THE 1 "TYPE A" UNIT IS LOCATED ON THE FIRST FLOOR.

THE 23 FOURTH FLOOR LOFT TERRACE UNITS WITH MEZZANINE
ACCESSED BY THE BUILDING ELEVATOR WILL MEET TYPE "B"
REQUIREMENTS ON THE PRIMARY ENTRY FLOOR PER MBC 1107.7.2.

THE 22 TOWNHOME AND TOWNHOUSE (MULTISTORY) UNITS ACCESSED ON
THE FIRST LEVEL, ARE NOT REQUIRED TO BE BARRIER FREE
PER MBC 1105.1.6 EXCEPTION 2 AND 1107.7.2.

TOWN CENTER DR

L
IV

E
R

N
O

IS
R

D

BICYCLE RACK

MAILBOXES

BALCONY

CL

443.09'

1
2
1
.4

0
'

TRANSFORMER

GENERATOR

BF1BF2

BALCONY

DUMPSTER &
RECYCLING
ENCLOSURE
(BRICK PATTERNED
POURED CONCRETE
WALLS - 6' HEIGHT)

CANOPY

CANOPY

5
7

'-
0

"

10' - 0"

1
0

'-
0

"

BICYCLE RACK

SIGN

SIGN

GREEN SCREEN

ELECTRIC METERS

SITE WALL

GAS METERS

1
0

'-
0

"
1

7
'-

0
"

2
4

'-
0

"
3

'-
0

"

10' - 7". 17' - 0" 24' - 0" 17' - 0" 7' - 0" 15' - 0" 5' - 8"

ELEC METERS

SITE WALL

SITE LIGHTING

GAS METERS

5
4

'-
0

"

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

78

79

96' - 3".

336' - 4".

515253545556575859 50 49 48 47 46 456061 44 43

89

90

91

92

87

88

84

80

81

82

83

85

86

757677 7374 646566676869707172 63 62

GROSS BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE:
NET SQUARE FOOTAGE SUMMARY:

FIRST FLOOR: 13,888 SQ FT NET UNITS
240 SQ FT MECH
404 SQ FT LOBBY

74 SQ FT ELEVATOR ELEC
72 SQ FT ELEVATOR

+ WALLS
+ STAIRS

(17,205 GROSS SQ FT)

SECOND FLOOR: 12,643 SQ FT NET UNITS
+ WALLS
+ STAIRS

(17,205 GROSS SQ FT)

THIRD FLOOR: 14,602 SQ FT NET UNITS
+ WALLS
+ STAIRS

(17,205 GROSS SQ FT)

FOURTH FLOOR & MEZZANINE: 12,984 SQ FT NET UNITS
1,606 SQ FT CORRIDOR

187 SQ FT JC/WC
+ WALLS
+ STAIRS

(16,980 GROSS SQ FT)

BUILDING NET SQ FT: 56,700 SQ FT
BUILDING GROSS SQ FT: 68,595 SQ FT*

*MEZZANINES DO NOT CONTRIBUTE TO EITHER BUILDNG AREA OR
NUMBER OF STORIES AS REGULATED BY SECTION 503.1.

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:1

3
:0

4
P

M

As indicated

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

ARCHITECTURAL SITE
PLAN

AS01
7113.037.00

N

1" = 20'-0"

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN
A1

LANDSCAPING SHOWN FOR INTENT ONLY.
RE: SHEET L-1 LANDSCAPING PLAN FOR ACTUAL LANDSCAPING PLAN AND TYPE.

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV



D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

W
D

E

A

A201

C1

A201

A1

A201E1

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4

A201 E4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

B

D

13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 15' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8" 13' - 8"

14

C

13

STAIR
1

DEN

PATIO

MECH

ELEV
ELEC

LOBBY

LOBBY

UNIT
90

(2TH)

UNIT
86

(2TH)

DEN

PATIO

UNIT
82

(2TH)

UNIT
78

(2TH)

UNIT
74

(2TH)

UNIT
70

(2TH)

UNIT
66

(2TH)

UNIT
62

(2TH)

UNIT
58

(2TH)

UNIT
54

(2T)

UNIT
46

(2TH)

UNIT
42

(2TH)

UNIT
38

(2TH)

UNIT
34

(2TH)

UNIT
30

(2TH)

UNIT
26

(2TH)

UNIT
22

(2TH)

UNIT
18

(2TH)

UNIT
14

(2TH)

24

UNIT
10

(2TH)

ELEV

5
7

'-
0

".

21

STAIR
2

UNIT
94

(2TH)

UNIT
98

(2TH)

336' - 4"

UNIT
101
(1)

E

A

A201

C1

A201

A1

A201E1

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4

A201 E4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

B

D

14

C

13

STAIR
1

BALCONY

KITCHEN

DEN

BATH
BATH

DEN

LIVING

DINING

24

UNIT
90

(2TH)

UNIT
86

(2TH)

UNIT
82

(2TH)

UNIT
78

(2TH)

UNIT
74

(2TH)

UNIT
70

(2TH)

UNIT
66

(2TH)

UNIT
62

(2TH)

UNIT
58

(2TH)

UNIT
54

(2T)

UNIT
46

(2TH)

UNIT
42

(2TH)

UNIT
38

(2TH)

UNIT
34

(2TH)

UNIT
30

(2TH)

UNIT
26

(2TH)

UNIT
22

(2TH)

UNIT
18

(2TH)

UNIT
14

(2TH)

UNIT
10

(2TH)

BALCONY

DINING

LIVING
BALCONY

KITCHEN

LIVING

DINING

OPEN OPEN

OPEN

CANOPY

CANOPY

CANOPY

21

STAIR
2

CANOPY

UNIT
94

(2TH)

UNIT
98

(2TH)

E

A

A201

A1

A201E1

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4

A201 E4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

B

D

14

C

13

A202

F1

STAIR
1

BEDROOM

BEDROOM

B

B

BEDROOM

B

BEDROOM

B

B

BEDROOM

24

UNIT
90

(2TH)

UNIT
86

(2TH)

UNIT
82

(2TH)

UNIT
78

(2TH)

UNIT
74

(2TH)

UNIT
70

(2TH)

UNIT
66

(2TH)

UNIT
62

(2TH)

UNIT
58

(2TH)

UNIT
54

(2T)

UNIT
46

(2TH)

UNIT
42

(2TH)

UNIT
38

(2TH)

UNIT
34

(2TH)

UNIT
30

(2TH)

UNIT
26

(2TH)

UNIT
22

(2TH)

UNIT
18

(2TH)

UNIT
14

(2TH)

UNIT
10

(2TH)

21

STAIR
2

UNIT
94

(2TH)

UNIT
98

(2TH)

UNIT
411

(THT)

LIVING

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:1

6
:0

0
P

M

1/16" = 1'-0"

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

COMPOSITE FLOOR
PLANS

A001
7113.037.00

1/16" = 1'-0"

FIRST LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
A1

1/16" = 1'-0"

SECOND LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
C1

1/16" = 1'-0"

THIRD LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
E1

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV



E

A

A201E1

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4

A201 E4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

B

D

14

C

13 2421

JC/WC

ELEV

UNIT
423
(LT)

UNIT
401
(LT)

UNIT
403
(LT)

UNIT
405
(LT)

UNIT
407
(LT)

UNIT
409
(LT)

UNIT
411

(THT)

UNIT
413
(LT)

UNIT
415
(LT)

UNIT
417
(LT)

UNIT
419
(LT)

UNIT
421
(LT)

UNIT
422
(LT)

UNIT
402
(LT)

UNIT
404
(LT)

UNIT
406
(LT)

UNIT
408
(LT)

UNIT
410
(LT)

UNIT
412
(LT)

UNIT
414
(LT)

UNIT
416
(LT)

UNIT
418
(LT)

UNIT
420
(LT)

STAIR
1

STAIR
2

E

A

A201E1

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4

A201 E4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

B

D

14

C

13 2421

UNIT
423
(LT)

UNIT
401
(LT)

UNIT
403
(LT)

UNIT
405
(LT)

UNIT
407
(LT)

UNIT
409
(LT)

UNIT
411

(THT)

UNIT
413
(LT)

UNIT
415
(LT)

UNIT
417
(LT)

UNIT
419
(LT)

UNIT
421
(LT)

UNIT
422
(LT)

UNIT
402
(LT)

UNIT
404
(LT)

UNIT
406
(LT)

UNIT
408
(LT)

UNIT
410
(LT)

UNIT
412
(LT)

UNIT
414
(LT)

UNIT
416
(LT)

UNIT
418
(LT)

UNIT
420
(LT)

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:1

6
:2

7
P

M

1/16" = 1'-0"

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

COMPOSITE FLOOR
PLANS

A002
7113.037.00

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV

1/16" = 1'-0"

FOURTH LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
A1

1/16" = 1'-0"

MEZZANINE LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
C1



C1

A003

C1

A003

E1

A003

E1

A003

E4

A003

E4

A003

TERRACE SHINGLE ROOF
4/12 SLOPE

SINGLE PLY
MEMBRANE ROOF

SHINGLE ROOF
4/12 SLOPE

SHINGLE ROOF
4/12 SLOPE

TERRACE

FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

THIRD LEVEL
119' - 4 3/8"

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 1413

E1

A003

E1

A003

E4

A003

E4

A003

24

U
N

IT
(L

T
,
T

H
T

)
U

N
IT

(2
T

H
,
2
T

)

21

FOURTH LEVEL
129' - 3 5/8"

MEZZANINE LEVEL
139' - 2 7/8"

TOP OF PARAPET
151' - 0"

8
'-

0
".

8
'-

6
".

8
'-

6
".

8
'-

6
".

ROOF LINE
149' - 8"

EB DC

C1

A003

C1

A003

FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

THIRD LEVEL
119' - 4 3/8"

EA B DC

C1

A003

C1

A003

FOURTH LEVEL
129' - 3 5/8"

MEZZANINE LEVEL
139' - 2 7/8"

TOP OF PARAPET
151' - 0"

ROOF LINE
149' - 8"

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:1

8
:3

5
P

M

1/16" = 1'-0"

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

ROOF PLAN & BUILDING
SECTIONS

A003
7113.037.00

1/16" = 1'-0"A003

ROOF LEVEL PLANA1

1/16" = 1'-0"A003

BUILDING SECTIONC1

1/16" = 1'-0"A003

BUILDING SECTIONE1
1/16" = 1'-0"A003

BUILDING SECTIONE4

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV



FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

THIRD LEVEL
119' - 4 3/8"

151617181920212223 345678910111214 13

E1

A003

E1

A003

E4

A003

E4

A003

GLAZED BLOCK VENEER

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

BRICK VENEER 1

GRADE

RAIN CONDUCTOR
DOWNSPOUT

GLAZED BLOCK
VENEER

ALUMINUM
STOREFRONT

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

METAL PANEL @ ENTRY CANOPY

GARAGE DOOR

FURNACE
GRILLE

BRICK VENEER 2

BRICK VENEER 1

METAL DOOR

ARCHITECTURAL
CAST-IN-PLACE
CONCRETE

24 2

1

FOURTH LEVEL
129' - 3 5/8"

MEZZANINE LEVEL
139' - 2 7/8"

TOP OF PARAPET
151' - 0"

VINYL WINDOW (TYP)

GALVANIZED METAL
PANEL

BRICK VENEER 2

GALVALUME METAL SIDING

BRICK VENEER 1

BRICK VENEER 2

ROOF LINE
149' - 8"

FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

THIRD LEVEL
119' - 4 3/8"

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 1413

E1

A003

E1

A003

E4

A003

E4

A003

VINYL WINDOW (TYP)

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION

GALVALUME METAL SIDING

GLAZED BLOCK VENEER

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

METAL PANEL @ ENTRY CANOPY

BRICK VENEER 1

BRICK VENEER 2

BRICK VENEER 1

BRICK VENEER 2

GRADE

APARTMENT ENTRY DOOR W/
FULL GLASS AND HORIZONTAL
BLINDS

BRICK VENEER 2

24

DECORATIVE LIGHT FIXTURES

21

RAIN CONDUCTOR
DOWNSPOUT

GLAZED BLOCK
VENEER

GALVANIZED
METAL PANEL

FOURTH LEVEL
129' - 3 5/8"

MEZZANINE LEVEL
139' - 2 7/8"

TOP OF PARAPET
151' - 0"

ROOF LINE
149' - 8"

E ABD C

C1

A003

C1

A003

ASPHALT SHINGLES

BRICK VENEER 1

VINYL WINDOW (TYP)

ALUMINUM
STOREFRONT

GALVANIZED METAL
MESH @ BALCONY

ARCHITECTURAL CAST-IN-
PLACE CONCRETE
SITE WALL

GLAZED BLOCK VENEER

BRICK VENEER 2

GRADE

GALVALUME
METAL SIDING

GREEN SCREEN

FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

THIRD LEVEL
119' - 4 3/8"

EA B DC

C1

A003

C1

A003

FURNACE GRILLE

GALVANIZED METAL PANEL

ALUMINUM
STOREFRONT

GALVANIZED METAL
MESH @ BALCONY

BRICK VENEER 2

GRADE

GALVANIZED METAL
SIDING

BALCONY SUPPORT

FOURTH LEVEL
129' - 3 5/8"

MEZZANINE LEVEL
139' - 2 7/8"

TOP OF PARAPET
151' - 0"

ROOF LINE
149' - 8"

BRICK 1: #14-3 FL BOWERSTON SHALE COMPANY

BRICK 2: #50 BOWERSTON SHALE COMPANY

GLAZED BLOCK: BLACK GLAZED BELDEN BRICK COMPANY

TERRACE RAILING: BLACK VINYL METAL MESH

METAL SIDING: GALVALUME CENTRIA SIDING

ASPHALT SHINGLES: HARVARD SLATE IKO CAMBRIDGE AR

PROPOSED MATERIALS

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:2

0
:2

9
P

M

As indicated

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A201
7113.037.00

1/16" = 1'-0"A001

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - NORTHC1

1/16" = 1'-0"A001

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - SOUTHA1

1/16" = 1'-0"A001

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - EASTE1
1/16" = 1'-0"A001

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - WESTE4

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV



FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

THIRD LEVEL
119' - 4 3/8"

151617181920212223 345678910111214 1324

1
6

'-
0

"

2 1

FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 233 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 1413 24

1
6

'-
0

"

21

FIRST LEVEL
100' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
109' - 5 1/8"

THIRD LEVEL
119' - 4 3/8"

EA B DC

1
6

'-
0

"

E ABD C

1
6

'-
0

"

GREEN SCAPE WALL,
RE: LANDSCAPING

E

D

PATIO TYP

PATIO TYP

LOBBY

A

B
LOBBY

E

D

BALCONY TYP 2 STORY SPACECANOPY

A

B

BALCONY TYPCANOPY

'PEDESTRIAN LEVEL' QUALIFICATION DEFINITIONS

- PROPOSED ELEVATION: 16'-0"
(TO BOTTOM OF ENTRANCE CANOPIES)
ACHIEVES REQUIRED 14'-0" STREET ELEVATION

- EAST & SOUTH ELEVATIONS ARE 'URBAN STREET
FRONT' FACADES

FACADE VARIATION - 5.04.E.1

UNINTERRUPTED PUBLIC STREET FACADE LENGTH

MAX ALLOWED 30'-0"

PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION 19'-8"
SOUTH ELEVATION 9'-1"

TRANSPARENCY ALTERNATIVES - 5.04.E.3.B

(A) EXPRESSION OF STRUCTURAL SYSTEM
- EXPRESSION OF CONCRETE WALLS, BEAMS, AND BALCONIES
- INDENTED/OUTDENTED UNIT PLACEMENT

(D) MATERIAL VARIATION
- ALTERNATING BRICK COLOR
- FLAT METAL PANELS

(E) INTEGRATED ARCHITECTURAL ORNAMENTATION
- GLAZED BLOCK TO SIGNIFY ENTRANCES

(F) GREEN SCREEN OR PLANTER WALLS
- GREEN SCREEN AT EAST ELEVATION

PEDESTRIAN LEVEL ACTIVATION AREA CALCULATIONS

WEST ELEVATION

REQUIREMENT % REQUIRED % PROPOSED

TRANSPARENCY TOTAL

GLAZING/DOORS

TRANSPARENCY ALTERNATIVES

WALL DESIGN

INTEGRATED
ARCHITECTURAL
ORNAMENT

MATERIAL VARIATION

OUTDOOR DINING/SEATING

30% MIN

30% MIN

24% MAX

15% MAX

--

--

--

47.3%

44.1%

3.2%

3.2%

3.2%

0%

0%

EAST ELEVATION

REQUIREMENT % REQUIRED % PROPOSED

TRANSPARENCY TOTAL

GLAZING/DOORS

TRANSPARENCY ALTERNATIVES

WALL DESIGN

INTEGRATED
ARCHITECTURAL
ORNAMENT

MATERIAL VARIATION

GREEN SCREEN

OUTDOOR DINING/SEATING

50% MIN

50% MIN

40% MAX

25% MAX

--

--

--

--

61.0%

44.1%

16.9%

3.2%

3.2%

0%

13.7%

0%

SOUTH ELEVATION

REQUIREMENT % REQUIRED % PROPOSED

TRANSPARENCY TOTAL

GLAZING/DOORS

TRANSPARENCY ALTERNATIVES

WALL DESIGN

INTEGRATED
ARCHITECTURAL
ORNAMENT

MATERIAL VARIATION

OUTDOOR DINING/SEATING

50% MIN

50% MIN

40% MAX

25% MAX

--

--

--

56.6%

35.3%

21.3%

21.3%

10.9%

10.4%

1250 SF
ADD

NORTH ELEVATION

REQUIREMENT % REQUIRED % PROPOSED

TRANSPARENCY TOTAL

GLAZING/DOORS
(INCL GARAGE DOORS)

TRANSPARENCY ALTERNATIVES

WALL DESIGN

INTEGRATED
ARCHITECTURAL
ORNAMENT

MATERIAL VARIATION

STRUCTURAL CONCRETE
EXPRESSION

OUTDOOR DINING/SEATING

30% MIN

30% MIN

24% MAX

15% MAX

--

--

--

--

64.2%

54.5%

32.2%

9.7%

2.5%

0%

7.2%

0%

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:2

1
:3

0
P

M

As indicated

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

PEDESTRIAN LEVEL
ACTIVATION

A202
7113.037.00

1/16" = 1'-0"

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - NORTH
F1

1/16" = 1'-0"

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - SOUTH
C1

1/16" = 1'-0"A202

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - WESTF4
1/16" = 1'-0"A202

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - EASTF2

1/16" = 1'-0"

FIRST LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
A1

1/16" = 1'-0"

FIRST LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
D1

1/16" = 1'-0"

SECOND LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
B1

1/16" = 1'-0"

SECOND LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
E1

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV



0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.3 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3

0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4

0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2

0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2

0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3

0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3

1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3

1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3

1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3

1.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4

2.1 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.2 2.4 2.7 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.2 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4

2.5 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.6 2.8 3.1 3.3 3.5 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.5 3.3 3.0 2.8 2.5 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.5 2.8 3.1 3.3 3.5 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.5 3.3 3.1 2.8 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.5 2.7 3.0 3.2 3.4 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.5 3.4 3.2 2.9 2.6 2.3 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4

2.7 2.3 1.9 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.4 2.8 3.1 3.4 3.6 3.8 3.8 3.9 3.8 3.7 3.5 3.3 3.0 2.7 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.3 2.7 3.0 3.3 3.5 3.7 3.8 3.9 3.8 3.8 3.6 3.4 3.1 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.6 3.0 3.3 3.5 3.7 3.8 3.9 3.8 3.8 3.6 3.4 3.2 2.9 2.5 2.1 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4

2.8 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.6 3.8 3.9 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.9 3.7 3.5 3.2 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.5 2.9 3.2 3.5 3.7 3.9 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.9 3.8 3.5 3.3 2.9 2.6 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.4 2.7 3.1 3.4 3.7 3.9 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.9 3.8 3.6 3.3 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4

2.9 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.5 3.0 3.4 3.7 4.0 4.3 4.4 4.5 4.4 4.2 3.9 3.6 3.3 2.9 2.5 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.6 4.0 4.2 4.4 4.5 4.4 4.3 4.0 3.7 3.3 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 2.0 2.4 2.8 3.2 3.5 3.9 4.2 4.4 4.5 4.4 4.3 4.1 3.8 3.4 3.1 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4

2.9 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.5 3.0 3.4 3.9 4.3 4.7 4.9 4.9 4.8 4.6 4.2 3.7 3.3 2.9 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.8 4.2 4.6 4.8 4.9 4.9 4.6 4.3 3.8 3.4 3.0 2.6 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.4 2.8 3.2 3.6 4.1 4.5 4.8 4.9 4.9 4.7 4.4 4.0 3.5 3.1 2.6 2.2 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7

3.0 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 2.0 2.6 3.1 3.6 4.2 4.8 5.2 5.5 5.7 5.5 5.1 4.6 4.0 3.5 3.0 2.5 2.0 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5 4.1 4.6 5.1 5.5 5.7 5.5 5.2 4.7 4.2 3.6 3.1 2.6 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.9 2.4 2.9 3.4 3.9 4.5 5.0 5.4 5.7 5.6 5.3 4.9 4.3 3.8 3.2 2.7 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7

3.1 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.7 3.3 3.8 4.3 4.9 5.5 5.9 6.0 5.8 5.3 4.7 4.1 3.7 3.1 2.6 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.6 3.1 3.7 4.2 4.7 5.3 5.8 6.0 5.8 5.4 4.9 4.3 3.8 3.3 2.7 2.1 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.4 3.0 3.6 4.0 4.6 5.2 5.7 6.0 5.9 5.5 5.0 4.4 3.9 3.4 2.8 2.2 1.7 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7

3.1 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.0 2.7 3.2 3.6 4.2 4.7 5.4 5.6 5.7 5.6 5.2 4.6 4.0 3.5 3.1 2.6 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 2.0 2.6 3.1 3.5 4.0 4.6 5.2 5.6 5.7 5.6 5.3 4.7 4.2 3.6 3.2 2.7 2.1 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.8 2.4 3.0 3.4 3.9 4.5 5.1 5.5 5.7 5.6 5.4 4.8 4.3 3.7 3.3 2.8 2.2 1.6 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6

2.9 2.5 1.8 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.2 1.5 2.0 2.6 3.0 3.6 4.2 4.8 5.4 5.9 6.1 5.8 5.3 4.7 4.0 3.4 2.9 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.5 1.9 2.6 2.9 3.4 4.0 4.7 5.3 5.8 6.1 5.9 5.4 4.8 4.2 3.5 3.0 2.7 2.1 1.6 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.8 2.4 2.8 3.2 3.9 4.5 5.1 5.7 6.1 6.0 5.6 4.9 4.3 3.7 3.1 2.7 2.2 1.6 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5

2.8 2.4 1.9 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.6 2.0 2.5 2.9 3.6 4.3 5.1 5.7 6.3 6.5 6.2 5.6 4.9 4.1 3.4 2.8 2.4 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.5 2.0 2.4 2.8 3.4 4.2 4.9 5.6 6.2 6.5 6.3 5.7 5.1 4.3 3.6 2.9 2.5 2.1 1.6 1.2 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.8 2.3 2.7 3.3 4.0 4.7 5.5 6.0 6.5 6.4 5.9 5.3 4.5 3.8 3.1 2.5 2.1 1.6 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.4

2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.6 1.9 2.3 2.8 3.6 4.4 5.2 6.1 6.5 6.7 6.4 5.9 4.9 4.2 3.4 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.2 2.6 3.4 4.2 5.0 5.9 6.5 6.6 6.5 6.1 5.2 4.3 3.6 2.8 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.8 2.1 2.5 3.2 4.0 4.8 5.7 6.4 6.7 6.6 6.2 5.4 4.5 3.8 3.0 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4

2.6 2.0 1.6 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.8 3.6 4.3 5.1 6.2 6.6 6.6 6.5 5.9 4.8 4.1 3.4 2.6 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.6 3.4 4.1 4.9 6.0 6.5 6.6 6.6 6.2 5.1 4.3 3.5 2.7 2.1 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.4 3.2 4.0 4.6 5.7 6.4 6.6 6.6 6.3 5.3 4.4 3.7 2.9 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4

1.8 1.4 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7

0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5

0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3

0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

15 15 15

CALCULATION SUMMARY

LABEL

10 FT BEYOND BOUNDARY

PARKING LOT

PROPERTY BOUNDARY 5 FT AFF

CALC TYPE

ILLUMINANCE

ILLUMINANCE

ILLUMINANCE

UNITS

Fc

Fc

Fc

AVG

0.16

1.65

0.13

MAX

1.4

6.8

1.6

MIN

0.0

0.1

0.0

AVG/MIN

N/A

16.50

N/A

MAX/MIN

N/A

68.00

N/A

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION

KSF-1 250M R4SC

KSF-1 250M R4SC BACK-TO-BACK

LABEL

KSF-1_250M_R4SC

2 KSF-1_250M_R4SC

TOTAL LAMP LUMENS

22500

2250

LLF

0.720

0.720

LED

0.800

0.800

LDD

0.900

0.900

TOTAL WATTS

1440

1152

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:1

3
:0

5
P

M

As indicated

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

EXTERIOR SITE LIGHTING
PLAN

ES01
7113.037.00

1" = 10'-0"

SITE LIGHTING - EAST
A1

N

R
E

:
E

S
0
2

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV



0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1

0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2

0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.7 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.5 2.9 3.0 2.6 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.8 3.3 3.4 2.9 2.4 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.9 1.9

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 3.1 3.8 3.9 3.3 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.7 3.4 4.2 4.3 3.6 2.9 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.4 4.3 4.5 3.7 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.3

0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.7 3.0 3.5 4.4 4.6 3.8 3.1 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.4

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 4.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.4

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 3.0 3.6 4.5 4.7 3.9 3.2 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.4

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.6 2.7 3.0 3.7 4.6 4.7 3.9 3.1 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.4

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 3.0 3.7 4.6 4.7 3.9 3.2 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.9 3.5 4.2 4.4 3.7 3.0 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.7 3.3 3.9 4.0 3.4 2.8 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.7 3.1 3.6 3.7 3.2 2.8 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.6 3.0 3.5 3.5 3.1 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.3 3.0 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.4 2.8 3.1 3.2 2.8 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.7 3.0 3.1 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.7 3.1 3.1 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.8 3.2 3.2 2.8 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.3 3.0 2.6 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 3.0 3.5 3.5 3.1 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.7 3.2 3.7 3.7 3.2 2.7 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.8 3.3 4.0 4.0 3.4 2.8 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.9 3.6 4.3 4.4 3.6 3.0 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 3.1 3.8 4.6 4.7 3.9 3.1 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.8 3.1 3.7 4.6 4.7 3.8 3.1 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.5

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 3.1 3.7 4.6 4.6 3.8 3.1 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.5

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.3

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7 3.0 3.6 4.5 4.5 3.7 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.9 3.5 4.4 4.4 3.6 2.9 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.7 1.7 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.8 3.4 4.2 4.3 3.5 2.8 2.5 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.6 3.1 3.8 3.8 3.2 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.8 3.3 3.4 2.8 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.5 3.0 3.0 2.6 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.7 2.7 2.3 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1

0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2

0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4

0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.4 2.5 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.2 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.2 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6

0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.5 2.9 3.1 3.3 3.6 3.7 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.8 3.6 3.4 3.1 2.9 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.3 2.6 2.9 3.1 3.3 3.5 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.5 3.3 3.1 2.8 2.5 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.8

0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.7 3.0 3.3 3.6 3.8 4.0 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.0 3.9 3.7 3.4 3.1 2.8 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.4 2.8 3.1 3.4 3.6 3.8 3.8 3.9 3.8 3.7 3.5 3.3 3.0 2.7 2.3 1.9 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 2.0

0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.7 3.1 3.5 3.7 4.0 4.1 4.2 4.3 4.3 4.2 4.1 3.8 3.6 3.3 2.9 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.1 2.6 3.0 3.3 3.6 3.8 3.9 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.9 3.7 3.5 3.2 2.8 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.7 3.1 3.4 3.8 4.1 4.4 4.6 4.7 4.7 4.6 4.3 4.0 3.7 3.3 2.9 2.5 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.7 4.0 4.3 4.4 4.5 4.4 4.2 3.9 3.6 3.3 2.9 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1

0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.8 4.3 4.7 5.0 5.1 5.1 5.0 4.7 4.2 3.8 3.3 2.9 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.1 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.9 4.3 4.7 4.9 4.9 4.8 4.6 4.2 3.7 3.3 2.9 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1

0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.6 3.0 3.6 4.1 4.6 5.1 5.5 5.8 5.9 5.6 5.2 4.6 4.0 3.5 3.0 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.6 3.1 3.6 4.2 4.8 5.2 5.6 5.7 5.5 5.1 4.6 4.0 3.5 3.0 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 2.0

0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.5 3.1 3.7 4.2 4.7 5.3 5.8 6.1 6.2 5.8 5.3 4.7 4.1 3.6 3.1 2.5 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.7 3.3 3.8 4.3 4.9 5.5 5.9 6.0 5.8 5.3 4.7 4.1 3.7 3.1 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 2.0

0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.3 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 2.0 2.5 3.1 3.5 4.0 4.6 5.1 5.7 5.8 5.8 5.7 5.2 4.6 4.0 3.5 3.1 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 2.1 2.8 3.2 3.6 4.2 4.7 5.4 5.6 5.7 5.6 5.2 4.6 4.0 3.5 3.1 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.0

0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.9 2.5 3.0 3.4 4.0 4.6 5.2 5.8 6.1 6.2 5.8 5.2 4.6 4.0 3.3 3.0 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.1 2.7 3.0 3.6 4.2 4.8 5.4 5.9 6.1 5.8 5.3 4.7 4.0 3.4 2.9 2.5 1.8 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.2 1.5 2.0

0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.2 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.4 2.8 3.3 4.0 4.7 5.5 6.1 6.6 6.6 6.1 5.5 4.8 4.0 3.3 2.8 2.4 1.9 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.1 2.5 2.9 3.6 4.3 5.1 5.7 6.3 6.5 6.2 5.6 4.9 4.1 3.4 2.8 2.4 1.9 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.6 2.0

0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.2 2.6 3.2 4.0 4.7 5.6 6.4 6.7 6.8 6.5 5.7 4.8 4.1 3.3 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.6 1.9 2.3 2.8 3.6 4.4 5.2 6.1 6.5 6.7 6.4 5.9 4.9 4.2 3.4 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.6 1.9

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.5 3.2 4.0 4.6 5.5 6.5 6.7 6.7 6.5 5.7 4.7 4.0 3.2 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.2 2.8 3.6 4.3 5.1 6.2 6.6 6.6 6.5 5.9 4.8 4.1 3.4 2.6 2.0 1.6 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.7

4.5 4.2 3.4 2.9 2.4 1.8 1.4 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7

1.0 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

25

25

15 15

CALCULATION SUMMARY

LABEL

10 FT BEYOND BOUNDARY

PARKING LOT

PROPERTY BOUNDARY 5 FT AFF

CALC TYPE

ILLUMINANCE

ILLUMINANCE

ILLUMINANCE

UNITS

Fc

Fc

Fc

AVG

0.16

1.65

0.13

MAX

1.4

6.8

1.6

MIN

0.0

0.1

0.0

AVG/MIN

N/A

16.50

N/A

MAX/MIN

N/A

68.00

N/A

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION

KSF-1 250M R4SC

KSF-1 250M R4SC BACK-TO-BACK

LABEL

KSF-1_250M_R4SC

2 KSF-1_250M_R4SC

TOTAL LAMP LUMENS

22500

2250

LLF

0.720

0.720

LED

0.800

0.800

LDD

0.900

0.900

TOTAL WATTS

1440

1152

1

ISSUE:

CHECKED:

SCALE:

© 2014 SHW Group

SHW Project:

SHEET TITLE:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

C
:\

R
e
v
it

L
o

c
a
l
F

il
e
s
\7

1
1
3
0
3
7
0
0
-A

T
C

-A
1
4
_
jw

ie
b

e
r.

rv
t

3
/2

0
/2

0
1
4

2
:1

3
:0

6
P

M

As indicated

AMBER PROPERTIES
COMPANY

AMBER TOWN CENTER
TOWNHOMES AND LOFTS

TROY, MI

EXTERIOR SITE LIGHTING
PLAN

ES02
7113.037.00

1" = 10'-0"

SITE LIGHTING - WEST
A1

N

R
E

:
E

S
0
1

02.28.2014 CONDITIONAL REZONING REV





C-2

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 &
 U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

N
O

R
TH

A
M

B
ER

 P
R

O
P

ER
TI

ES
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

10
 - 

90
 T

O
W

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 D

R
IV

E

K
n

o
w

 
w

h
a
t
'
s
 
b

e
l
o

w
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
C

a
l
l
 
b

e
f
o

r
e
 
y
o

u
 
d

i
g

.

UTILITY NOTES:

GRADING NOTES:

STORM STRUCTURE SCHEDULE

CROSSING SCHEDULE







PC 2014.03.25 
  Agenda Item # 10 
 

 
 
DATE: March 20, 2014 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS – Draft Revisions 
 
The Planning Commission Bylaws were last reviewed and updated in 2008. Since that 
time a comprehensively rewritten Zoning Ordinance was adopted by City Council in 
April 2011. It is recommended that the Planning Commission update its Bylaws to be 
consistent with the Zoning Ordinance. Other revisions are also recommended. 
 
The following is a summary of the proposed revisions: 
 

1. Update State acts referenced in Article I. 
2. Change the name “Board of Zoning Appeals” to “Zoning Board of Appeals”, as 

per Zoning Ordinance. 
3. Update provisions related to City Council appointment of a Planning Commission 

representative to Zoning Board of Appeals, as per Zoning Ordinance. Presently 
the Bylaws require the Planning Commission recommend appointment of a ZBA 
Representative and Alternate.   

4. Clarify that both regularly scheduled Planning Commission meetings, on the 2
nd

 
and 4

th
 Tuesdays of each month, are Regular meetings. This is consistent with 

the Open Meetings Act.   
5. Clarify the matters on which the Planning Commission acts as the approval 

authority or in an advisory capacity. 
6. Clarify that the Planning Department performs the duties of secretary for the 

Planning Commission. 
7. Update the Order of Business to be consistent with present Planning 

Commission practice. 
8. Allow for voice votes for non-Business items. 
9. Provide Chairperson the authority to ask for reason for “no” votes. 

10. Require members to adhere to City of Troy Appointee Code of Ethics.  
 
A two-thirds (2/3) vote of the entire membership of the Planning Commission (6 votes) 
is necessary to approve an amendment to the Bylaws. Please be prepared to discuss 
this item at the March 25, 2014 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting.  
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft Revised Planning Commission Bylaws 
 
G:\PLANNING COMMISSION\By-Laws\PC Bylaws Memo 03 25 2014.doc 



Proposed Revisions 
January 8, 2008 
 

Page 1 

BY-LAWS AND RULES OF PROCEDURE OF THE CITY OF TROY 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 
 

ARTICLE I – COMPLIANCE AND AUTHORITY 
 

The City of Troy Planning Commission shall comply with all applicable statutes, 
perform any duties, and exercise the powers granted to the Planning Commission by 
the Michigan Municipal Planning Enabling Act, Public Act 285 33 of 1931 2008, as 
amended, the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, Public Act 207 110 of 1921 2006, as 
amended, and the Open Meetings Act, Public Act 267 of 1976, as amended, and the 
City of Troy Charter and Ordinances.  The By-Laws and Rules of Procedure are 
adopted pursuant to the authority of those statutes and the City Charter. 
 
 

ARTICLE II – OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES 
 
Section 1. The Planning Commission shall select from its membership a Chairperson 

and, a Vice-Chairperson, and a Board of Zoning Appeals Representative 
and alternate for the Board of Zoning Appeals who shall serve for a one 
(1) year term and who shall be eligible for re-election.  The Planning 
Commission shall make a recommendation to City Council for a Zoning 
Board of Appeals Representative.  

 
Section 2. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings and shall conduct all 

meetings in accordance with these by-laws and rules and in accordance 
with the usual duties conferred by parliamentary procedure on the position 
of Chairperson. 

 
Section 3. The Vice-Chairperson shall act in the capacity of the Chairperson in the 

absence of the Chairperson and shall succeed to the office of Chairperson 
in the event of a vacancy in that office, in which case the Planning 
Commission shall select a successor to the office of Vice- Chairperson at 
the earliest practicable time by election procedures as set out in Article III.  

 
Section 4. In the absence of both the Chairperson and the Vice-Chairperson, the 

Board of Zoning Board of Appeals representative, or if the Board of Zoning 
Appeals representative is not present, the Board of Zoning Appeals 
alternate, shall act as Chairperson for that meeting only.  The temporary 
Chairperson shall have the same duties and privileges as the 
Chairperson. 

 
Section 5. The Officers, i.e., Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson, may engage in 

discussion on all matters before the Planning Commission and shall have 
voting privileges. 



Proposed Revisions 
January 8, 2008 
 

Page 2 

ARTICLE III – ELECTION OF OFFICERS AND APPOINTMENT OF BZA 
REPRESENTATIVES 

 
Section 1. Each January at the Regular Meeting, the Planning Commission shall: 
 

A. Conduct elections of Officers (Chairman Chairperson and Vice 
ChairmanChairperson); and  

 
B. Recommend appointments to  of aBoard of Zoning Board of 

Appeals (BZA Representative and BZA Alternate). 
 
The Chairman Chairperson shall take nominations from the floor with the 
election immediately thereafter.  
 

Section 2. Candidates receiving a majority vote of the total number of members shall 
be declared elected as a Planning Commission Officer or recommended 
as a BZA  Zoning Board of Appeals Representative or Alternate.   

 
Section 3. The Planning Commission Officers shall take office immediately following 

their election.  Officers shall hold their office for a term of one (1) year, or 
until their successors are elected and assume office.  The BZA Zoning 
Board of Appeals Representative and BZA Alternate shall assume their 
his or her responsibilities following confirmation of their appointments by 
City Council.  The BZA  Zoning Board of Appeals Representative and BZA 
Alternate shall hold their office for a term of one (1) year, or until their a 
successors are  is appointed by City Council and assume office.   

 
Section 4.   The Method of Voting on Nominees shall be as follows: 

 
A. The Chairperson shall ask for nominations from the floor.  A second 

shall not be required in order to nominate a person as an Officer or 
BZA  Zoning Board of Appeals Representative or BZA Alternate.  
The chairperson shall announce each nomination as he or she 
hears it.  If it becomes apparent to the chairperson that there are no 
further nominations, the chair Chairperson shall inquire “are there 
further nominations?”  If there are no further nominations, the chair 
Chairperson shall declare the nominations as closed. 

 
B. If there is only one nominee for each position, a single resolution 

may be used to elect all the officers.  The resolution must be 
approved by a majority of Planning Commission members by a roll 
call vote. 

 
C. If there is only one nominee for a particular position, a resolution 

electing that person to the particular position shall be approved by 
roll call vote. 



Proposed Revisions 
January 8, 2008 
 

Page 3 

D. If there is more than one nominee for a position, voting shall take 
place by calling the roll of the Planning Commission and each 
member is to indicate the name of the individual he or she wishes 
to fill the position.  If one candidate receives a majority vote, that 
person shall be deemed elected and the chairperson shall 
announce such election.  If no candidate receives a majority vote, 
the candidate with the least number of votes shall be eliminated 
from the ensuing ballot and the procedure shall be repeated until 
one candidate receives a majority vote. 

 
 

ARTICLE IV – MEETINGS 
 
Section 1. All meetings shall be posted at City Hall according to the Open Meetings 

Act.  The notice shall include the place, date and time of the meeting. 
 
Section 2. All meetings shall be conducted in accordance with generally accepted 

parliamentary procedure, within the guidelines of Robert’s Rules of 
Orders. 

 
Section 3. Regular Meetings of the Planning Commission shall be held on the 

second and fourth Tuesday of each month at 7:30 7:00 p.m. at the Troy 
City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan.  Special Meetings 
and Study Meetings may be held on the first and fourth Tuesday of each 
month at 7:30 p.m., as necessary.  Special Meetings shall be held at City 
Hall.  Site Location Meetings may be scheduled at any reasonable time 
and notice of the time shall be included in the public notice of the Site 
Location Meeting.  Any changes in the date or time of any meeting shall 
be posted and noticed in the same manner as originally established.  
When a Regular Meeting date falls on or near a legal holiday, the Planning 
Commission shall  may select a suitable alternate date in the same month. 

 
Section 4. The Chairperson may call Special Meetings.  In addition, it shall be the 

duty of the Chairperson to call a Special Meeting when requested to do so 
by an affirmative vote of a majority of the Planning Commission members 
present.  The business which the Planning Commission may perform at a 
Special Meeting may be the same business that the Planning Commission 
performs at a Regular Meeting.  Notice of the time, date and place of the 
Special Meeting shall be given in a manner as required by the Open 
Meetings Act and the Planning Director shall notify all members of the 
Planning Commission not less than 48 hours in advance of a Special 
Meetings. 

 
Section 5. The Chairperson may call Study Meetings.  At Study Meetings, the 

Planning Commission shall not vote on any of the following matters: (1) 
any matter requiring a public hearing, (2) matters which must be finally 



Proposed Revisions 
January 8, 2008 
 

Page 4 

approved by the Planning Commission such as Site Plan review 
applications and , Future Land Use Plan Amendments, Special Use 
Requests, and (3) matters where the Planning Commission is acting in an 
advisory capacity, such as, Rezoning Requests, Ordinance Text 
Amendments, Subdivision Plats, Street and Alley Vacations or Extensions, 
Historic District Designations,  or Planned Unit Development Proposals 
and/or Site Condominiums.  It may vote on housekeeping matters such as 
setting public hearing dates and approval of minutes.  

 
Section 6. All meetings of the Planning Commission, including Regular, Special, 

Study or Site Location, shall be open to the general public unless 
exempted from public meeting requirements under the Open Meetings 
Act.  The City Attorney’s Office shall make the determination as to whether 
the meeting or a portion of the meeting is exempt under the Open 
Meetings Act. 

 
Section 7. A majority of the membership of the Planning Commission shall constitute 

a quorum and the number of votes necessary to transact business shall 
be as follows: 

 
A. The affirmative vote of six (6) members shall be necessary in order 

to adopt or amend a Future Land Use  Master Plan including any 
attachment or cross sections of a Future Land Use Plan. 

 
B. A vote comprising a majority of those  the members present at a 

meeting shall be necessary for those matters on which the Planning 
Commission has final jurisdiction, as per Section 3.10 of the City of 
Troy Zoning Ordinance.  

 
C. A vote comprising a majority of those members present at a 

meeting shall be necessary for those matters on which the Planning 
Commission serves in an advisory capacity. 

 
D. Voting on items on the Business Agenda shall be by a rotating roll 

call.  Voting on procedural items may be by a rotating roll call vote 
or voice vote, as determined by the Chairperson.  A record of the 
roll call vote shall be kept as a part of the minutes. 

 
E. When a quorum is not present, no official action shall take place.  

The Chairperson or Planning Director shall announce to the 
Commission and anyone in attendance that there is no quorum and 
that all agenda items will be rescheduled for a specific date.  

 
F. The Chairman may ask members who vote “no” on an item to 

explain the “no” vote for clarification purposes as part of the public 
record.   

Formatted: Strikethrough



Proposed Revisions 
January 8, 2008 
 

Page 5 

 
 
Section 8. The Planning Department of the City of Troy shall perform the duties of 

the Secretary of the Planning Commission and shall keep the minutes and 
records of the Commission, prepare the agenda of Regular Meetings, 
Special Meetings and Study Meetings with the Chairperson, provide notice 
of meetings to Planning Commission members, present agenda items to 
the Planning Commission at its meetings, attend to correspondence of the 
Planning Commission, and perform such other duties that are normally 
carried out by such departments.as necessary to carry out the business of 
the Planning Commission. 

 
 

ARTICLE V – ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

The order of business at a Regular Meeting and Special Meetings shall be:   
 

A. A. Roll Call 

B. Approval of Agenda 

BC. Approval of Minutes 

CD. Public Comments for items not on the agenda 

E.  Reports.  Reports may include Zoning Board of Appeals reports, Downtown 

Development Authority reports, Planning and Zoning reports, and any other 

report on information that may be of interest to the Planning Commission. 

DF. Business Agenda. The business agenda may include postponed items, 

public hearings on zoning ordinance amendments and special use 

approval requests, preliminary site plan reviews, and any other matter that 

is before the Planning Commission for approval or recommendation. 

EG. Other Business 

H.    Public Comments for items on the agenda. 

I. Planning Commissioner’s Comments 

FJ. Adjournment 

 
 

ARTICLE VI – PLANNING COMMISSION ACTIONS 
 

Following consideration of matters submitted to it in accordance with the 
provisions of the City Code of Ordinances or other applicable law, or referred to it by the 
City Council, the Planning Commission shall take one of the following actions: 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Indent at:
 1"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 4 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.56" + Tab
after:  0.81" + Indent at:  0.81"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.5"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 8 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.56" + Indent
at:  0.81"



Proposed Revisions 
January 8, 2008 
 

Page 6 

 
A. Approve the proposal, or recommend positive action by the City Council. 
 
B. Deny the proposal, or recommend negative action by the City Council. 
 
C. Approve a proposal modified to meet reasonable conditions, or 

recommend approval of a modified proposal meeting reasonable 
conditions by the City Council.  However, the Planning Commission shall 
not place conditions on an approval of a recommendation to City Council 
for rezoning., except for conditional rezoning in accordance with Section 
16.04 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 

 
D. Table  Postpone action on the proposal to a specific date or action or no 

date a date to be determined later by the Planning Department, indicating 
in the tabling resolution the reason(s) for such action. 

 
The Planning Commission shall make a final disposition of any Petition submitted 

to the Planning Commission for decision act on all applications within a reasonable 
time.  This shall not be construed to alter other time limits prescribed by the Charter, 
Code of Ordinances or State statutes. 



Proposed Revisions 
January 8, 2008 
 

Page 7 

ARTICLE VII – HEARINGS 
 
Section 1. In addition to those required by law, the Planning Commission may at its 

discretion hold public hearings when it decides that such hearing will be in 
the public interest. 

 
Section 2. Notice of such hearings shall be published in the official newspaper of the 

City or in a newspaper of general circulation as required by the City 
Charter, Code of Ordinances and/or State statutes.  The Planning Director 
shall take the necessary steps to see that notice is published in 
accordance with the City Charter, Code of Ordinances and/or State 
statutes. 

 
Section 3. The Petition request before the Planning Commission shall be presented 

in summary by the Planning Director or his or her representative or a 
designated member of the Planning Commission.  The Planning Director 
may present additional information to the Planning Commission through 
personnel from other Departments and/or non-City employees, if the 
Planning Director believes that information would be helpful to the 
Planning Commission.  Parties in interest shall have the privilege of the 
floor. 

 
Section 4. If the petitioner or petitioner’s representative fails to appear for a 

scheduled hearing, the Planning Commission may proceed with the 
hearing in the absence of the petitioner and act on the proposal in 
accordance with Article VI.  Adjournment of any scheduled hearing must 
be approved by a majority of the Planning Commission member in 
attendance.  Requests for adjournment for reasons not set out in this 
provision shall only be granted for good cause. 

 
Section 5. Public hearings and other proceedings conducted by the Planning 

Commission shall be run in an orderly and timely fashion.  This shall be 
accomplished by the following procedure: 

 
A. If an agenda item does not require a public hearing, the 

Chairperson shall have the discretion to allow members of the 
public to address the agenda item.  Once opened to the public for 
comment, the hearing shall be conducted in the same manner as a 
public hearing. 

 
B. After announcement by the Chairperson that the public hearing 

portion of the meeting for a specific agenda item is open, persons 
who wish to address the Planning Commission shall speak when 
recognized by the Chairperson and provide his/her name and 
address on the attendance sheet provided at the podium.  All 
comments shall be addressed to the Chairperson. 



Proposed Revisions 
January 8, 2008 
 

Page 8 

C. The Chairperson may have removed from the hearing room any 
member of the public that causes a breach of the peace during the 
public hearing. 

 
D. The Chairperson may place reasonable limits on the length of time 

speakers have to address an agenda item. 
 
 

ARTICLE VIII – COMMITTEES 
 
Section 1. The rules and procedures committee may be appointed for one (1) year by 

the Chairperson and shall consist of three (3) members of the Planning 
Commission.  Vacancies shall be filled immediately by the Chairperson of 
the Planning Commission. 

 
Section 2 1. Other special cCommittees may be appointed as needed by the 

Chairperson for purposes and terms which the Planning Commission 
approves. 

 
 

ARTICLE IX – EMPLOYEES 
 
Section 1. The Planning Commission may recommend employment of such staff 

and/or experts as it sees fit to aid the Planning Commission in its work. 
 
 

ARTICLE X – AMENDMENTS 
 

These By-laws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of the entire membership of 
the Planning Commission. 
 

ARTICLE XI – ETHICS 
 

Planning Commission members shall adhere to the City of Troy Appointee Code 
of Ethics. 
 
G:\PLANNING COMMISSION\By-Laws\By-Laws of PC - Draft Revisions 01 17 2014ATM Rev..doc  
G:\PLANNING COMMISSION\By-Laws\By-Laws of PC - Draft Revisions 01 29 2014.doc 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5",
Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B,
C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned
at:  0.5" + Tab after:  0.75" + Indent at:  0.75",
Tab stops:  1.5", List tab + Not at  0.75"

Formatted: Heading 3, Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: 9 pt

Formatted: Font: 9 pt


	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. MINUTES – March 11, 2014 Regular Meeting
	March 11, 2014

	4. PUBLIC COMMENT
	5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT
	6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT
	7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT
	8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 080-D)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report
	February 11, 2014 Planning Commission Minutes 
	February 18, 2014 Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
	Landscape Maintenance and Replacement Agreement
	Site Plan Submittal

	9. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 011)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Master Plan excerpt
	Planning Consultant Report 
	Site Plan Submittal

	10. PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Draft  Bylaws

	11. PUBLIC COMMENT
	12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT
	Revised Preliminary Site Plan 2014 03 11.pdf
	01_G0-00 - COVER SHEET
	02_G0-01 - RENDERINGS
	C1-00-Boundary-Topo
	C1-01-General Site Plan
	C1-02-Engineering Site Plan
	L0-01 TREE INVENTORY-TREE SURVEY-PC 02.03.2014
	L1-01 LANDSCAPE PLAN-PC 02.03.2014
	L1-02 LANDSCAPE DETAILS-PC-02.03.2014
	A0-00 - OVERALL SITE PLAN
	A0-01 - ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN
	A1-01 - FIRST FLOOR PLAN
	A1-02 - SECOND FLOOR PLAN
	A2-01 - Elevations
	ES1-00




